

Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 3: Unity in the Body-

By Dawn M. Flores

Declarations: With God's Words, You Will Overcome!

-Book 3: Unity in the Body-

By
Dawn M. Flores

© 2021 Dawn M. Flores. First Edition

Synergy of the Ages NW

Glory Fire Army International Ministries

Scriptures: World English Bible (WEB)

by Public Domain. The name "World English Bible" is trademarked.

Contents

Compassion	
In Love & Obedience I Follow the Lord!	2
My Words of Faith Change the Atmosphere!	6
You Shall Know Them by Their Fruit!	9
You Are the Shining Image of Christ on Earth!	13
The Righteous Dwell in Unity & Will Inherit the Land!	16
Commitment	20
I Am Committed – Living Fully Immersed in Christ!	21
I Will Listen, Obey, & Continue to Listen!	24
I Am Committed to the Lord & His Body!	28
The Body is Strengthened in Fellowship!	31
The Harvest & the Laborers are Ready!	34
God's Call	37
Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah Our Deliverer!	
God's Suddenlies Come that We Might Know Him More!	42
By Faith I Move Forth in God's Call & See His Provision	46
In Unity We Will Proclaim the Death & Resurrection of Christ	49
God is Calling You Higher!	53
Anointing	57
Everything You Put Your Hands to is Blessed!	
Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!	62
My Life is to Glorify God!	66
In Love & Obedience I Follow the Lord!	69
Our Encouragement Overflows!	73
Flourish	76
I Am Encouraged!	77
By Bearing Much Fruit You Prove to be Christ's Disciples!	81
God's Rain is Causing His People to Flourish!	85

God is Calling You Into Your Future!	89
The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!	92

Compassion

In Love & Obedience I Follow the Lord!

John 14:23-31; Acts 5:12-42; Hebrews 3:1-19 (WEB)

John 14:23-31

²³ Jesus answered him, "If a man loves me, he will keep my word. My Father will love him, and we will come to him, and make our home with him. ²⁴ He who doesn't love me doesn't keep my words. The word which you hear isn't mine, but the Father's who sent me. ²⁵ I have said these things to you while still living with you. ²⁶ But the Counselor, the Holy Spirit, whom the Father will send in my name, will teach you all things, and will remind you of all that I said to you. ²⁷ Peace I leave with you. My peace I give to you; not as the world gives, I give to you. Don't let your heart be troubled, neither let it be fearful. ²⁸ You heard how I told you, 'I go away, and I come to you.' If you loved me, you would have rejoiced, because I said 'I am going to my Father;' for the Father is greater than I. ²⁹ Now I have told you before it happens so that when it happens, you may believe. ³⁰ I will no more speak much with you, for the prince of the world comes, and he has nothing in me. ³¹ But that the world may know that I love the Father, and as the Father commanded me, even so I do. Arise, let's go from here.

Acts 5:12-42

¹² By the hands of the apostles many signs and wonders were done among the people. They were all with one accord in Solomon's porch. ¹³ None of the rest dared to join them, however the people honored them. ¹⁴ More believers were added to the Lord, multitudes of both men and women. ¹⁵ They even carried out the sick into the streets, and laid them on cots and mattresses, so that as Peter came by, at the least his shadow might overshadow some of them. ¹⁶ The multitude also came together from the cities around Jerusalem, bringing sick people and those who were tormented by unclean spirits: and they were all healed.

¹⁷ But the high priest rose up, and all those who were with him (which is the sect of the Sadducees), and they were filled with jealousy ¹⁸ and laid hands on the apostles, then put them in public custody. ¹⁹ But an angel of the Lord opened the prison doors by night, and brought them out and said, ²⁰ "Go stand and speak in the temple to the people all the words of this life."

²¹ When they heard this, they entered into the temple about daybreak and taught. But the high priest came, and those who were with him, and called the council together, and all the senate of the children of Israel, and sent to the prison to have them brought. ²² But the officers who came didn't find them in the prison. They returned and reported, ²³ "We found the prison shut and locked, and the guards standing before the doors, but when we opened them, we found no one inside!"

²⁴ Now when the high priest, the captain of the temple, and the chief priests heard these words, they were very perplexed about them and what might become of this. ²⁵ One came and told them, "Behold, the men whom you put in prison are in the temple, standing and teaching the people." ²⁶ Then the captain went with the officers, and brought them without violence, for they were afraid that the people might stone them.

²⁷ When they had brought them, they set them before the council. The high priest questioned them, ²⁸ saying, "Didn't we strictly command you not to teach in this name? Behold, you have filled Jerusalem with your teaching, and intend to bring this man's blood on us."

²⁹ But Peter and the apostles answered, "We must obey God rather than men. ³⁰ The God of our fathers raised up Jesus, whom you killed, hanging him on a tree. ³¹ God exalted him with his right hand to be a Prince and a Savior, to give repentance to Israel, and remission of sins. ³² We are his witnesses of these things; and so also is the Holy Spirit, whom God has given to those who obey him."

³³ But they, when they heard this, were cut to the heart, and were determined to kill them. ³⁴ But one stood up in the council, a Pharisee named Gamaliel, a teacher of the law, honored by all the people, and commanded to put the apostles out for a little while. ³⁵ He said to them, "You men of Israel, be careful concerning these men, what you are about to do. ³⁶ For before these days Theudas rose up, making himself out to be somebody; to whom a number of men, about four hundred, joined themselves. He was slain; and all, as many as obeyed him, were dispersed, and came to nothing. ³⁷ After this man, Judas of Galilee rose up in the days of the enrollment, and drew away some people after him. He also perished, and all, as many as obeyed him, were scattered abroad. ³⁸ Now I tell you, withdraw from these men, and leave them alone. For if this counsel or this work is of men, it will be overthrown. ³⁹ But if it is of God, you will not be able to overthrow it, and you would be found even to be fighting against God!"

⁴⁰They agreed with him. Summoning the apostles, they beat them and commanded them not to speak in the name of Jesus, and let them go. ⁴¹They therefore departed from the presence of the council, rejoicing that they were counted worthy to suffer dishonor for Jesus' name.

⁴² Every day, in the temple and at home, they never stopped teaching and preaching Jesus, the Christ.

Hebrews 3:1-19

¹Therefore, holy brothers, partakers of a heavenly calling, consider the Apostle and High Priest of our confession: Jesus, ² who was faithful to him who appointed him, as also Moses was in all his house. ³ For he has been counted worthy of more glory than Moses, because he who built the house has more honor than the house. ⁴ For every house is built by someone; but he who built all things is God. ⁵ Moses indeed was faithful in all his house as a servant, for a testimony of those things which were afterward to be spoken, ⁶ but Christ is faithful as a Son over his house. We are his house, if we hold fast our confidence and the glorying of our hope firm to the end. ¹ Therefore, even as the Holy Spirit says, "Today if you will hear his voice, ⁶ don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion, in the day of the trial in the wilderness, ⁰ where your fathers tested me and tried me, and saw my deeds for forty years. ¹ Therefore I was displeased with that generation, and said, 'They always err in their heart, but they didn't know my ways.' ¹¹ As I swore in my wrath, 'They will not enter into my rest.'" [Psalm 95:7-11]

¹² Beware, brothers, lest perhaps there might be in any one of you an evil heart of unbelief, in falling away from the living God; ¹³ but exhort one another day by day, so long as it is called "today", lest any one of you be hardened by the deceitfulness of sin. ¹⁴ For we have become partakers of Christ, if we hold the beginning of our confidence firm to the end, ¹⁵ while it is said, "Today if you will hear his voice, don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion." [Psalm 95:7-8]

¹⁶ For who, when they heard, rebelled? Wasn't it all those who came out of Egypt led by Moses? ¹⁷ With whom was he displeased forty years? Wasn't it with those who sinned, whose bodies fell in the wilderness? ¹⁸ To whom did he swear that they wouldn't enter into his rest, but to those who were disobedient? ¹⁹ We see that they weren't able to enter in because of unbelief.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare I LOVE JESUS CHRIST/YESHUA THE MESSIAH, therefore I CHOOSE TO KEEP HIS WORD! His Father, God/Elohim, LOVES me and they have COME TO ME and have made their DWELLING with me.
- ➤ I decree and declare the HELPER, the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh Whom the Father sent in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name, is with me to TEACH me EVERYTHING and REMIND me of EVERYTHING that Jesus/Yeshua said. I AM NOT ALONE. He is with me to COMFORT and GUIDE in all my ways.
- ➤ I decree and declare the PEACE/SHALOM of Christ/Messiah has been given to you; it is not as the World gives or considers peace. KNOW that Jesus/Yeshua is with you ALWAYS. DON'T LET YOUR HEART BE TROUBLED OR AFRAID. REJOICE for Jesus/Yeshua is with the Father. As He walked in complete OBEDIENCE to the Father, in LOVE, so we will WALK IN LOVE and OBEDIENCE to the Father also!
- ➤ I decree and declare as I MOVE IN THE HOLY SPIRIT/RUACH HAKODESH Signs and Wonders will happen among the People. I REJOICE for MORE and MORE will TRUST in the Lord/Adonai and be added to His Body. God's PRESENCE, His GLORY within me will TOUCH those in need, both emotionally and in body. Those who are sick or tormented by unclean spirits will be HEALED, in the Name and Anointing of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not be alarmed when the religious leaders and some people cannot tolerate the TRUTH and things of God that I share. I will not fear if I am bound and imprisoned, for the Lord is with me. He is my STRENGTH and BOLDNESS to WORSHIP and PRAISE His Name in the midst of the trial. This is an opportunity for God to show His Glory!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will send His Angels to protect His People, no matter what the circumstances are. They will GUARD you in all your ways. (Psalm 91:11) Choose to LISTEN and OBEY the Spirit's/Ruach's promptings; your Way will be very fruitful.
- ➤ I decree and declare though you are given strict orders to abstain from teaching in Jesus Christ's/Yeshua the Messiah's Name, you know that your reply must be, "WE MUST OBEY GOD/ELOHIM rather than men! We must preach Christ/Messiah CRUCIFIED and RAISED FROM THE DEAD, to give repentance to Israel and the World, and REMOVAL OF SINS!"
- ➤ I decree and declare I am among the HOLY family of God/Elohim: brothers and sisters, partners in a HEAVENLY CALLING! I take notice of Jesus/Yeshua the Messenger and High Priest/Kohen Gadol I affirm. Christ/Messiah, as Son, is over God's/Elohim's House and we are His House, if we HOLD FIRM to our BOLDNESS and what we are proud to HOPE!
- I decree and declare HEARTS and EARS will be OPEN TODAY, that the Backsliders and Unbelievers will TURN and HEAR the CALL of the Spirit/Ruach. I speak LIFE and HOPE into their hearts. Those who have waited will WAIT NO MORE; they will not harden their Hearts in rebellion, but COME to the Father, covered by the Blood of the Lamb. They will be welcomed before the Father as they TRUST in Christ/Messiah.

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 24, 2019]

My Words of Faith Change the Atmosphere!

Hebrews 11:1-3, 8-16; 1 Samuel 17:32-51; Deuteronomy 11:22-25 (WEB)

Hebrews 11:1-3, 8-16

Now faith is assurance of things hoped for, proof of things not seen. ² For by this, the elders obtained testimony. ³ By faith, we understand that the universe has been framed by the word of God, so that what is seen has not been made out of things which are visible....

⁸ By faith, Abraham, when he was called, obeyed to go out to the place which he was to receive for an inheritance. He went out, not knowing where he went. ⁹ By faith, he lived as an alien in the land of promise, as in a land not his own, dwelling in tents with Isaac and Jacob, the heirs with him of the same promise. ¹⁰ For he looked for the city which has the foundations, whose builder and maker is God.

¹¹ By faith, even Sarah herself received power to conceive, and she bore a child when she was past age, since she counted him faithful who had promised. ¹² Therefore as many as the stars of the sky in multitude, and as innumerable as the sand which is by the sea shore, were fathered by one man, and him as good as dead.

¹³ These all died in faith, not having received the promises, but having seen^[a] them and embraced them from afar, and having confessed that they were strangers and pilgrims on the earth. ¹⁴ For those who say such things make it clear that they are seeking a country of their own. ¹⁵ If indeed they had been thinking of that country from which they went out, they would have had enough time to return. ¹⁶ But now they desire a better country, that is, a heavenly one. Therefore God is not ashamed of them, to be called their God, for he has prepared a city for them.

1 Samuel 17:32-51

³² David said to Saul, "Let no man's heart fail because of him. Your servant will go and fight with this Philistine."

³³ Saul said to David, "You are not able to go against this Philistine to fight with him; for you are but a youth, and he a man of war from his youth."

³⁴ David said to Saul, "Your servant was keeping his father's sheep; and when a lion or a bear came and took a lamb out of the flock, ³⁵ I went out after him, struck him, and rescued it out of his mouth. When he arose against me, I caught him by his beard, struck him, and killed him. ³⁶ Your servant struck both the lion and the bear. This uncircumcised Philistine shall be as one of them, since he has defied the armies of the living God." ³⁷ David said, "Yahweh, who delivered me out of the paw of the lion and out of the paw of the bear, will deliver me out of the hand of this Philistine."

Saul said to David, "Go! Yahweh will be with you."

³⁸ Saul dressed David with his clothing. He put a helmet of bronze on his head, and he clad him with a coat of mail. ³⁹ David strapped his sword on his clothing and he tried to move, for he had not tested it. David said to Saul, "I can't go with these, for I have not tested them." Then David took them off.

⁴⁰ He took his staff in his hand, and chose for himself five smooth stones out of the brook, and put them in the pouch of his shepherd's bag which he had. His sling was in his hand; and he came near to the Philistine. ⁴¹ The Philistine walked and came near to David; and the man who bore the shield went before him. ⁴² When the Philistine looked around and saw David, he disdained him; for he was but a youth, and ruddy, and had a good looking face. ⁴³ The Philistine said to David, "Am I a dog, that you come to me with sticks?" The Philistine cursed David by his gods. ⁴⁴ The Philistine said to David, "Come to me, and I will give your flesh to the birds of the sky and to the animals of the field."

⁴⁵Then David said to the Philistine, "You come to me with a sword, with a spear, and with a javelin; but I come to you in the name of Yahweh of Armies, the God of the armies of Israel, whom you have defied. ⁴⁶Today, Yahweh will deliver you into my hand. I will strike you and take your head from off you. I will give the dead bodies of the army of the Philistines today to the birds of the sky and to the wild animals of the earth, that all the earth may know that there is a God in Israel, ⁴⁷ and that all this assembly may know that Yahweh doesn't save with sword and spear; for the battle is Yahweh's, and he will give you into our hand."

⁴⁸ When the Philistine arose, and walked and came near to meet David, David hurried and ran toward the army to meet the Philistine. ⁴⁹ David put his hand in his bag, took a stone and slung it, and struck the Philistine in his forehead. The stone sank into his forehead, and he fell on his face to the earth. ⁵⁰ So David prevailed over the Philistine with a sling and with a stone, and struck the Philistine and killed him; but there was no sword David's hand. ⁵¹ Then David ran, stood over the Philistine, took his sword, drew it out of its sheath, killed him, and cut off his head with it.

When the Philistines saw that their champion was dead, they fled.

Deuteronomy 11:22-25

²² For if you shall diligently keep all these commandments which I command you—to do them, to love Yahweh your God, to walk in all his ways, and to cling to him—²³ then Yahweh will drive out all these nations from before you, and you shall dispossess nations greater and mightier than yourselves. ²⁴ Every place on which the sole of your foot treads shall be yours: from the wilderness and Lebanon, from the river, the river Euphrates, even to the western sea shall be your border. ²⁵ No man will be able to stand before you. Yahweh your God will lay the fear of you and the dread of you on all the land that you tread on, as he has spoken to you.

- ➤ I decree and declare FAITH is the SUBSTANCE of things HOPED for, the EVIDENCE of REALITIES not seen. The UNIVERSE was CREATED by the Word of God, so that what is SEEN did not come from anything visible.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will OBEY as I am CALLED to GO OUT to a place I do not know, to a place where the Spirit/Ruach LEADS. By FAITH I will MIGRATE to the Land of Promise, Living in TRANSITION, WAITING for the City that has FOUNDATIONS, whose Architect and Builder is God.

- ➤ I decree and declare the One, Almighty God/El Shaddai, Who has PROMISED my future and ABUNDANCE in His Spirit/Ruach is FAITHFUL! Though I may die without the PROMISES coming to fruition, yet I SEE them and WELCOME them from afar, and I confess that I am a STRANGER and SOJOURNER on this Earth!
- ➤ I decree and declare my Heart will not fail because of the enemy. Though the enemy is great in number or tall in stature, they are NO MATCH for the Great I AM/Yud-Heh-Vav-Heh. God Almighty/El Shaddai is my STRENGTH; He will not fail me.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not accept the methods and trappings of the World to achieve God's/Elohim's VICTORY and PURPOSE. I TOSS ASIDE that which does not originate with my Lord/Adonai and Savior, Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah.
- ➤ I decree and declare I WILL STAND FIRM and CONFIDENT in the LORD! The enemy's words of intimidation will not sway me. As David said to Goliath, "You are coming to me with a sword, a spear and a javelin, but I AM COMING TO YOU IN THE NAME OF THE LORD OF HOSTS/ADONAITZVA'OT, God of the Armies of Israel, who you have defied! All the Earth will know that there is a God in Israel, and so all this assembly will know that the Lord/Adonai delivers not with sword and spear -- for the BATTLE BELONGS TO THE LORD/ADONAI and He will give you into our hands."
- I decree and declare I will not pull back from the enemy, but rather I will run forward to meet him with CONFIDENCE. I WILL PREVAIL over the enemy!
- ➤ I decree and declare that I will walk in OBEDIENCE to all that the Lord/Adonai COMMANDS me; I will walk in ALL HIS WAYS and cling to Him then the Lord/Adonai will DRIVE OUT all the enemies from before us and we will DISPOSSESS Peoples greater than ourselves.
- ➤ I decree and declare EVERY PLACE where the SOLES of our FEET TREAD will be ours. NO ONE will be able to STAND AGAINST US—the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai will put the FEAR and DREAD of us upon all the land where we tread, JUST AS HE HAS PROMISED US.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, July 1, 2019]

You Shall Know Them by Their Fruit!

Matthew 7:15-23;12: 33-37; Galatians 5:13-25; Ephesians 5:1-20 (WEB)

Matthew 12: 33-37

³³ "Either make the tree good and its fruit good, or make the tree corrupt and its fruit corrupt; for the tree is known by its fruit. ³⁴ You offspring of vipers, how can you, being evil, speak good things? For out of the abundance of the heart, the mouth speaks. ³⁵ The good man out of his good treasure brings out good things, and the evil man out of his evil treasure brings out evil things. ³⁶ I tell you that every idle word that men speak, they will give account of it in the day of judgment. ³⁷ For by your words you will be justified, and by your words you will be condemned."

Matthew 7:15-23

¹⁵ "Beware of false prophets, who come to you in sheep's clothing, but inwardly are ravening wolves. ¹⁶ By their fruits you will know them. Do you gather grapes from thorns or figs from thistles? ¹⁷ Even so, every good tree produces good fruit, but the corrupt tree produces evil fruit. ¹⁸ A good tree can't produce evil fruit, neither can a corrupt tree produce good fruit. ¹⁹ Every tree that doesn't grow good fruit is cut down and thrown into the fire. ²⁰ Therefore by their fruits you will know them.

²¹ "Not everyone who says to me, 'Lord, Lord,' will enter into the Kingdom of Heaven, but he who does the will of my Father who is in heaven. ²² Many will tell me in that day, 'Lord, Lord, didn't we prophesy in your name, in your name cast out demons, and in your name do many mighty works?' ²³ Then I will tell them, 'I never knew you. Depart from me, you who work iniquity.'

Galatians 5:13-25

¹³ For you, brothers, were called for freedom. Only don't use your freedom for gain to the flesh, but through love be servants to one another. ¹⁴ For the whole law is fulfilled in one word, in this: "You shall love your neighbor as yourself." <u>Leviticus 19:18</u> ¹⁵ But if you bite and devour one another, be careful that you don't consume one another.

¹⁶ But I say, walk by the Spirit, and you won't fulfill the lust of the flesh. ¹⁷ For the flesh lusts against the Spirit, and the Spirit against the flesh; and these are contrary to one another, that you may not do the things that you desire. ¹⁸ But if you are led by the Spirit, you are not under the law. ¹⁹ Now the deeds of the flesh are obvious, which are: adultery, sexual immorality, uncleanness, lustfulness, ²⁰ idolatry, sorcery, hatred, strife, jealousies, outbursts of anger, rivalries, divisions, heresies, ²¹ envy, murders, drunkenness, orgies, and things like these; of which I forewarn you, even as I also forewarned you, that those who practice such things will not inherit God's Kingdom.

²² But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faith, ²³ gentleness, and self-control. Against such things there is no law. ²⁴ Those who belong to Christ have crucified the flesh with its passions and lusts.

²⁵ If we live by the Spirit, let's also walk by the Spirit.

Ephesians 5:1-20

Be therefore imitators of God, as beloved children. ² Walk in love, even as Christ also loved us and gave himself up for us, an offering and a sacrifice to God for a sweet-smelling fragrance.

⁶ Let no one deceive you with empty words. For because of these things, the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ Therefore don't be partakers with them. ⁸ For you were once darkness, but are now light in the Lord. Walk as children of light, ⁹ for the fruit of the Spirit is in all goodness and righteousness and truth, ¹⁰ proving what is well pleasing to the Lord. ¹¹ Have no fellowship with the unfruitful deeds of darkness, but rather even reprove them. ¹² For it is a shame even to speak of the things which are done by them in secret. ¹³ But all things, when they are reproved, are revealed by the light, for everything that reveals is light. ¹⁴ Therefore he says, "Awake, you who sleep, and arise from the dead, and Christ will shine on you."

¹⁵Therefore watch carefully how you walk, not as unwise, but as wise, ¹⁶ redeeming the time, because the days are evil. ¹⁷Therefore don't be foolish, but understand what the will of the Lord is. ¹⁸ Don't be drunken with wine, in which is dissipation, but be filled with the Spirit, ¹⁹ speaking to one another in psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs; singing and making melody in your heart to the Lord; ²⁰ giving thanks always concerning all things in the name of our Lord Jesus Christ, to God, even the Father;

- ➤ I decree and declare the Tree is KNOWN by its FRUIT! Good Trees bear good Fruit, but the rotten trees bear rotten fruit. Bad Trees cannot say anything good, for from the OVERFLOW of the Heart the mouth speaks. Those with rotten roots, though speaking what appears to be good, are speaking to SWAY and MISLEAD. Rotten words and works cannot continue to be mixed with truth. There is REPENTANCE, but without it, the tree remains Bad.
- ➤ I decree and declare, on the Day of Judgment, all People will give account for EVERY CARELESS WORD they speak. For by your words you are JUSTIFIED, and by your words you will be CONDEMNED.
- I decree and declare your gift of DISCERNMENT is INCREASING over your life. There are many False Prophets who appear to belong to your community, dressed in sheep's clothing, but INWARDLY they are ravenous wolves. They come in subtly and in agreement with you and the Lord's teachings, then begin to interject false, erroneous and anti-Christ teachings. Be AWARE that in these Last Days the enemy is working to deceive even the Mature Believers, if possible.

³ But sexual immorality, and all uncleanness or covetousness, let it not even be mentioned among you, as becomes saints; ⁴ nor filthiness, nor foolish talking, nor jesting, which are not appropriate, but rather giving of thanks.

⁵ Know this for sure, that no sexually immoral person, nor unclean person, nor covetous man, who is an idolater, has any inheritance in the Kingdom of Christ and God.

- I decree and declare not all those who call Jesus/Yeshua, "Lord, Lord!" will enter the Kingdom of Heaven, but those who DO the WILL of the Father in Heaven are those who will enter in. Those who are selfish and teaching doctrines of men and false gods are workers of the enemy. The Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua will declare to them, "I NEVER KNEW YOU. Get away from Me, you workers of lawlessness!"
- ➤ I decree and declare YOU were CALLED to FREEDOM! But don't use this freedom as an excuse to mistreat one another, but through LOVE SERVE one another: LOVE your Neighbor as Yourself!
- ➤ I decree and declare you CHOOSE to WALK by the Spirit/Ruach, so that you will not carry out the desires of the flesh. For the flesh sets its desire AGAINST the Spirit/Ruach, but the Spirit/Ruach sets its desire against the flesh for these are in OPPOSITION to one another, so that you cannot do what you want.
- ➤ I decree and declare as you are LED by the Spirit/Ruach; you are not entertaining the deeds of the flesh which result in death. Those who follow sexual immorality, impurity, indecency, idolatry, witchcraft, hostility, strife, jealousy, rage, selfish ambition, dissension, factions, envy, drunkenness, carousing and things like these will not inherit God's Kingdom.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Fruit of the Spirit/Ruach is LOVE, joy peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness and self-control against these things there is no law. As we LIVE by the Spirit/Ruach, we strive to also WALK by the Spirit/Ruach!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as the Lord's/Adonai's dearly loved Children, be IMITATORS of God, and WALK in LOVE, just as Christ/Messiah also loved us and gave Himself up for us. Don't let the evil and corrupt activities and desires of the world be mentioned among you, as is proper for Believers.
- ➤ I decree and declare that your TALK will be FILLED with THANKSGIVING, rather than obscene, coarse, and stupid talk that are out of place. For we know that no immoral, indecent, or greedy person who is really an idol worshipper at heart has any inheritance in the Kingdom of Christ/Messiah and God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare your SPIRITUAL EYES and EARS are being fine-tuned: you will not be deceived with empty words, for these deceptions cause God's judgment to come on the children of DISOBEDIENCE. You will be cautioned by the Spirit/Ruach, "Do not be partners with them!" Now in union with the Lord YOU ARE IN THE LIGHT. You will WALK as Children of the Light, learning what is pleasing to the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are WISE! You PAY CLOSE ATTENTION to how you walk not as unwise people but as wise. You are making the most of your time because the days are evil. You UNDERSTAND what the Lord's/Adonai's will is.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are FILLED with the Spirit/Ruach, speaking to one another in Psalms, Hymns, and Spiritual Songs, singing and making music in your heart to the Lord ALWAYS

GIVING THANKS for everything to God the Father/Elohim Abba, in the name of the Lord Jesus/Yeshua Messiah!

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 3, 2019]

You Are the Shining Image of Christ on Earth!

Genesis 1:26-28; 1 Corinthians 15:45-53; 2 Corinthians 3:16-18; Colossians 3:1-17 (WEB)

Genesis 1:26-28

²⁶ God said, "Let's make man in our image, after our likeness. Let them have dominion over the fish of the sea, and over the birds of the sky, and over the livestock, and over all the earth, and over every creeping thing that creeps on the earth." ²⁷ God created man in his own image. In God's image he created him; male and female he created them. ²⁸ God blessed them. God said to them, "Be fruitful, multiply, fill the earth, and subdue it. Have dominion over the fish of the sea, over the birds of the sky, and over every living thing that moves on the earth."

1 Corinthians 15:45-53

⁴⁵ So also it is written, "The first man, Adam, became a living soul." <u>Genesis 2:7</u> The last Adam became a life-giving spirit. ⁴⁶ However that which is spiritual isn't first, but that which is natural, then that which is spiritual. ⁴⁷ The first man is of the earth, made of dust. The second man is the Lord from heaven. ⁴⁸ As is the one made of dust, such are those who are also made of dust; and as is the heavenly, such are they also that are heavenly. ⁴⁹ As we have borne the image of those made of dust, let's also bear the image of the heavenly. ⁵⁰ Now I say this, brothers, that flesh and blood can't inherit God's Kingdom; neither does the perishable inherit imperishable.

⁵¹ Behold, I tell you a mystery. We will not all sleep, but we will all be changed, ⁵² in a moment, in the twinkling of an eye, at the last trumpet. For the trumpet will sound and the dead will be raised incorruptible, and we will be changed. ⁵³ For this perishable body must become imperishable, and this mortal must put on immortality.

2 Corinthians 3:16-18

¹⁶ But whenever someone turns to the Lord, the veil is taken away. ¹⁷ Now the Lord is the Spirit and where the Spirit of the Lord is, there is liberty. ¹⁸ But we all, with unveiled face seeing the glory of the Lord as in a mirror, are transformed into the same image from glory to glory, even as from the Lord, the Spirit.

Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

⁵ Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. ⁶ For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; ⁸ but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. ⁹ Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, ¹⁰ and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, ¹¹ where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

¹² Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; ¹³ bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

¹⁴ Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. ¹⁵ And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. ¹⁶ Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

¹⁷ Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

- ➤ I decree and declare by God's CREATIVE WORD you are made in His IMAGE, in the likeness of the Father/Abba, Son and Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. God has given you AUTHORITY to RULE over the fish in the sea, the birds in the air, the animals, and over all the EARTH, and over every crawling creature that crawls on the Earth!
- ➤ I decree and declare the first man, became a living human being, but the Last Adam has become a LIFE-GIVING SPIRIT/RUACH. The body from the Spirit/Ruach did not come first, but the ordinary Human one; the one from the Spirit/Ruach comes afterwards. The first man is from the Earth, made of dust; the second Man is from Heaven. People born of dust are like the man of dust, and People born from Heaven are like the Man from Heaven; and just as we have borne the image of the man of dust; so also we will bear the IMAGE of the Man from Heaven.
- ➤ I decree and declare flesh and blood cannot share in the Kingdom of God, nor can something that decays share in what does not decay. Not all of us will die! But we will all be CHANGED! It will take but a moment, the blink of an eye, at the FINAL SHOFAR! For the Shofar will SOUND, and the dead will be RAISED to LIVE FOREVER, and we too will be changed. For this material which can decay must be clothed with IMPERISHABILITY, this which is mortal must be clothed with IMMORTALITY.
- ➤ I decree and declare we who have turned to the Lord/Adonai have our faces unveiled, for where the Spirit of the Lord/Ruach Adonai is, there is FREEDOM. So all of us, with faces unveiled, see as in a mirror the GLORY of the Lord, and WE ARE BEING CHANGED into His very IMAGE, from one degree of Glory to the next, by the Lord the Spirit/Adonai Ruach!
- ➤ I decree and declare you who were raised with Christ/Messiah are SEEKING the things ABOVE, where Christ/Messiah is sitting at the right hand of God/Elohim. You are FOCUSING your minds on the things above, not on the things here on Earth.

- ➤ I decree and declare you have DIED, and your LIFE is HIDDEN with Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim. When Christ/Messiah, who is our Life, appears, they you too will APPEAR with Him in GLORY!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are putting to DEATH the earthly parts of your nature, for it is because of these that God's/Elohim's anger is coming on those who disobey Him. Because you have stripped away the old self, with its ways, and have put on the NEW SELF, which is CONTINUALLY BEING RENEWED in FULLER and FULLER KNOWLEDGE, CLOSER and CLOSER to the IMAGE of its Creator.
- ➤ I decree and declare the NEW SELF does not discriminate between Gentile and Jew, circumcised and uncircumcised, foreigner, savage, slave, free man; on the contrary, in all, Christ/Messiah is EVERYTHING!
- ➤ I decree and declare as God's/Elohim's CHOSEN PEOPLE, HOLY and DEARLY LOVED, clothe yourselves with feelings of COMPASSION and KINDNESS, humility, gentleness and patience. Bear with one another. Indeed, just as the Lord has forgiven you, so you must forgive.
- ➤ I decree and declare above all these qualities, CLOTHE YOURSELVES with LOVE, which binds everything together perfectly; and let the PEACE/SHALOM which comes from Christ/Messiah be your heart's decision-maker, for this is why you were called to be part of a single Body.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are THANKFUL! You are letting the Word of Christ/Messiah, in all its richness, LIVE IN YOU, as you teach and counsel each other in all WISDOM, and as you sing psalms, hymns and spiritual songs with GRATITUDE to God/Elohim in your hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 24, 2019]

The Righteous Dwell in Unity & Will Inherit the Land!

Psalm 133:1-3; Isaiah 32:1-20; 2 Corinthians 13:5-14; 1 Peter 3:8-17 (WEB)

Psalm 133:1-3

See how good and how pleasant it is for brothers to live together in unity!

It is like the precious oil on the head, that ran down on the beard, even Aaron's beard, that came down on the edge of his robes,

like the dew of Hermon, that comes down on the hills of Zion; for there Yahweh gives the blessing, even life forever more.

Isaiah 32:1-20

Behold, a king shall reign in righteousness, and princes shall rule in justice.

A man shall be as a hiding place from the wind, and a covert from the storm, as streams of water in a dry place, as the shade of a large rock in a weary land.

The eyes of those who see will not be dim,

and the ears of those who hear will listen.

The heart of the rash will understand knowledge, and the tongue of the stammerers will be ready to speak plainly.

⁵The fool will no longer be called noble, nor the scoundrel be highly respected.

⁶ For the fool will speak folly, and his heart will work iniquity, to practice profanity, and to utter error against Yahweh, to make empty the soul of the hungry, and to cause the drink of the thirsty to fail.

⁷The ways of the scoundrel are evil.

He devises wicked plans to destroy the humble with lying words, even when the needy speaks right.

⁸ But the noble devises noble things; and he will continue in noble things.

⁹ Rise up, you women who are at ease! Hear my voice! You careless daughters, give ear to my speech!

¹⁰ For days beyond a year you will be troubled, you careless women; for the vintage will fail.

The harvest won't come.

¹¹Tremble, you women who are at ease!

Be troubled, you careless ones! Strip yourselves, make yourselves naked, and put sackcloth on your waist.

- ¹² Beat your breasts for the pleasant fields, for the fruitful vine.
- ¹³ Thorns and briers will come up on my people's land; yes, on all the houses of joy in the joyous city.
- ¹⁴ For the palace will be forsaken.

The populous city will be deserted.

The hill and the watchtower will be for dens forever, a delight for wild donkeys, a pasture of flocks,

- ¹⁵ until the Spirit is poured on us from on high, and the wilderness becomes a fruitful field, and the fruitful field is considered a forest.
- ¹⁶Then justice will dwell in the wilderness; and righteousness will remain in the fruitful field.
- ¹⁷The work of righteousness will be peace, and the effect of righteousness, quietness and confidence forever.
- ¹⁸ My people will live in a peaceful habitation, in safe dwellings, and in quiet resting places,
- ¹⁹ though hail flattens the forest, and the city is leveled completely.
- ²⁰ Blessed are you who sow beside all waters, who send out the feet of the ox and the donkey.

2 Corinthians 13:5-14

⁵ Examine your own selves, whether you are in the faith. Test your own selves. Or don't you know about your own selves, that Jesus Christ is in you?—unless indeed you are disqualified. ⁶ But I hope that you will know that we aren't disqualified.

⁷ Now I pray to God that you do no evil; not that we may appear approved, but that you may do that which is honorable, though we are as reprobate. ⁸ For we can do nothing against the truth, but for the truth. ⁹ For we rejoice when we are weak and you are strong. We also pray for this: your becoming perfect. ¹⁰ For this cause I write these things while absent, that I may not deal sharply when present, according to the authority which the Lord gave me for building up, and not for tearing down.

- ¹¹ Finally, brothers, rejoice! Be perfected. Be comforted. Be of the same mind. Live in peace, and the God of love and peace will be with you. ¹² Greet one another with a holy kiss.
- ¹³ All the saints greet you.
- ¹⁴The grace of the Lord Jesus Christ, God's love, and the fellowship of the Holy Spirit be with you all. Amen.

1 Peter 3:8-17

⁸ Finally, all of you be like-minded, compassionate, loving as brothers, tenderhearted, courteous, ⁹ not rendering evil for evil, or insult for insult; but instead blessing, knowing that you were called to this, that you may inherit a blessing. ¹⁰ For,

"He who would love life

and see good days,

let him keep his tongue from evil and his lips from speaking deceit.

¹¹Let him turn away from evil and do good.

Let him seek peace and pursue it.

¹² For the eyes of the Lord are on the righteous, and his ears open to their prayer;

but the face of the Lord is against those who do evil. "Psalm 34:12-16

¹³ Now who will harm you if you become imitators of that which is good? ¹⁴ But even if you should suffer for righteousness' sake, you are blessed. "Don't fear what they fear, neither be troubled. "Isaiah 8:12 ¹⁵ But sanctify the Lord God in your hearts. Always be ready to give an answer to everyone who asks you a reason concerning the hope that is in you, with humility and fear, ¹⁶ having a good conscience. Thus, while you are spoken against as evildoers, they may be disappointed who curse your good way of life in Christ. ¹⁷ For it is better, if it is God's will, that you suffer for doing well than for doing evil.

- ➤ I decree and declare IT IS GOOD AND PLEASANT for the CHILDREN OF GOD to live together in HARMONY! The UNITY of the Believers is like FRAGRANT OIL on the head that runs down over the beard of Aaron, and flows down on the collar of his robes.
- ➤ I decree and declare UNITY is like the dew of Hermon that settles on the MOUNTAINS OF ZION/TZIYON. For it was there that the Lord/Adonai ORDAINED THE BLESSING OF EVERLASTING LIFE!
- ➤ I decree and declare there is COMING A KING WHO WILL REIGN JUSTLY and Princes who will RULE UPRIGHTLY! They will rule by the WORD OF THE LORD BY GOD'S TRUTH THEY WILL DIRECT THE PEOPLES.
- ➤ I decree and declare the EYES of those seeing WILL NOT BE CLOSED, the EARS of those hearing WILL PAY CLOSE ATTENTION. The MINDS of the impetuous will LEARN TO WEIGH CAREFULLY, the TONGUES of the stutterers will SPEAK READILY AND CLEARLY. It is by the will of the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai Who is your Maker.
- ➤ I decree and declare it WILL BE KNOWN across the Land that the IMPOSTORS and LIARS have lost their power. The mean person will no longer be called generous or the miserly said to be noble.

- ➤ I decree and declare the GENEROUS PEOPLE, Believers of the Most High/'Elyon, devises generous things and his GENEROSITY WILL KEEP HIM STANDING!
- ➤ I decree and declare as the SPIRIT/RUACH OF THE LORD/ADONAI IS POURED OUT FROM ABOVE, the desert will become a FERTILE FIELD, and the fertile field will be regarded as a FOREST. THEN JUSTICE WILL DWELL IN THE DESERT AND RIGHTEOUSNESS ABIDE IN THE FERTILE FIELD.
- ➤ I decree and declare the EFFECT OF RIGHTEOUSNESS WILL BE PEACE! The result of RIGHTEOUSNESS, QUIET TRUST FOREVER! The People of the Lord/Adonai will live in a peaceful place, in secure neighborhoods and tranquil dwellings.
- ➤ I decree and declare that I TRUST IN GOD, and my GOAL IS TO LIVE THE LIFE OF TRUST DAILY! Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah dwells within me. My desire is that you will not fail, but also desire to do nothing wrong and do what is right.
- ➤ I decree and declare YOU, the People of God, are one in mind and feeling; YOU LOVE AS BROTHERS; and are compassionate and humble-minded, NOT REPAYING evil with evil or insult with insult, but, on the contrary, WITH BLESSING. Whoever wants to love life and see good days must keep his tongue from evil and his lips from speaking deceit, TURN FROM EVIL AND DO GOOD, seek peace and CHASE AFTER IT!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai keeps His eyes on the RIGHTEOUS, and His ears are OPEN to their prayers, but the face of the Lord/Adonai is AGAINST those who do evil things. I WILL NOT FEAR what they fear or be disturbed, but will treat the Christ/Messiah as Holy, as Lord/Adonai in my heart.
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 25th, 2021]

Commitment

I Am Committed – Living Fully Immersed in Christ!

Psalm 26:1-12; Romans 8:5-11; Colossians 3:1-17 (WEB)

Psalm 26:1-12

Judge me, Yahweh, for I have walked in my integrity. I have trusted also in Yahweh without wavering.

- ² Examine me, Yahweh, and prove me.
 - Try my heart and my mind.
- ³ For your loving kindness is before my eyes.
 - I have walked in your truth.
- ⁴I have not sat with deceitful men, neither will I go in with hypocrites.
- ⁵I hate the assembly of evildoers, and will not sit with the wicked.
- ⁶I will wash my hands in innocence, so I will go about your altar, Yahweh,
- that I may make the voice of thanksgiving to be heard and tell of all your wondrous deeds.
- ⁸ Yahweh, I love the habitation of your house, the place where your glory dwells.
- ⁹ Don't gather my soul with sinners, nor my life with bloodthirsty men;
- in whose hands is wickedness, their right hand is full of bribes.
- ¹¹ But as for me, I will walk in my integrity. Redeem me, and be merciful to me.
- ¹² My foot stands in an even place. In the congregations I will bless Yahweh.

Romans 8:5-11

⁵ For those who live according to the flesh set their minds on the things of the flesh, but those who live according to the Spirit, the things of the Spirit. ⁶ For the mind of the flesh is death, but the mind of the Spirit is life and peace; ⁷ because the mind of the flesh is hostile toward God; for it is not subject to God's law, neither indeed can it be. ⁸ Those who are in the flesh can't please God. ⁹ But you are not in the flesh but in the Spirit, if it is so that the Spirit of God dwells in you. But if any man doesn't have the Spirit of Christ, he is not his. ¹⁰ If Christ is in you, the body is dead because of sin, but the spirit is alive because of righteousness. ¹¹ But if the Spirit of him who raised up Jesus from the dead dwells in you, he who raised up Christ Jesus from the dead will also give life to your mortal bodies through his Spirit who dwells in you.

Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

⁵ Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. ⁶ For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; ⁸ but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. ⁹ Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, ¹⁰ and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, ¹¹ where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

¹² Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; ¹³ bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

¹⁴ Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. ¹⁵ And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. ¹⁶ Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

¹⁷ Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai VINDICATES me, for I have lived a blameless life; unwaveringly trusting in Him. Through the Sacrifice of Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, I am cleansed as white as snow. It is by His work that I am RECEIVED by the Father/Abba. I PRAISE His Holy Name!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai EXAMINES my heart, tests me, and searches my mind and heart. My Life is before Him as an open book. His GRACE is before my Eyes, and I LIVE my Life by His TRUTH!
- I decree and declare Lord/Adonai, I WASH my hands in innocence and walk around Your Altar, lifting my voice in THANKS and PROCLAIMING Your Wonders! I Love the House where You Live, the place where Your GLORY ABIDES. I strive to live a blameless life, with Holy Spirit leading and guiding me. My feet are PLANTED on LEVEL GROUND, in the Assemblies I BLESS the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare I set my mind on the things of Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. As my mind is CONTROLLED by the Spirit/Ruach there is LIFE and PEACE/SHALOM! Those who are controlled by their old nature cannot submit themselves to God's/Elohim's Law!

- ➤ I decree and declare you who IDENTIFY with the Spirit/Ruach have the Him LIVING inside you. Your body is dead because of sin, but alive because the Spirit/Ruach gives you LIFE because God/Elohim considers you RIGHTEOUS!
- ➤ I decree and declare that you who were raised with Christ/Messiah SEEK THE THINGS ABOVE where Christ/Messiah is sitting at the Right Hand of God/Elohim. You FOCUS your minds on the THINGS ABOVE, not on the things here on Earth. For you have DIED, and your Life is HIDDEN with Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim. When Christ/Messiah, Who is your Life, appears, then you too will appear with Him in GLORY!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Earthly parts of your nature are PUT TO DEATH; for it is because of these things that God's/Elohim's ANGER is coming on those who DISOBEY Him. You, who used to practice these things have PUT THEM ALL AWAY anger, exasperation, meanness, slander and obscene talk. You PUT ON THE NEW SELF, which is continually RENEWED in fuller KNOWLEDGE, closer and closer to the IMAGE of its Creator!
- ➤ I decree and declare the New Self allows no room for discriminating between Gentiles and Jew, circumcised and uncircumcised, foreigner, savage, slave, free man; on the contrary, in all, Christ/Messiah is EVERYTHING!
- ➤ I decree and declare as God's/Elohim's Chosen People, HOLY and DEARLY LOVED, clothe yourselves with COMPASSION and KINDNESS, HUMILITY, GENTLENESS and PATIENCE. Bear with one another and FORGIVE, if anyone has a complaint against someone else. Just as the Lord/Adonai has forgiven you, so you must FORGIVE.
- ➤ I decree and declare above all else, CLOTHE YOURSELVES WITH LOVE, which binds Everything together PERFECTLY; and let the PEACE/SHALOM which comes from Christ/Messiah be your heart's DECISION MAKER, for this is why you were called to be part of a single Body.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are THANKFUL! You let the Word of Christ/Messiah, in all its richness, LIVE in you, as you TEACH and COUNSEL each other in all WISDOM, and as you sing psalms, hymns and spiritual songs with GRATITUDE to God in your hearts.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 17, 2019]

I Will Listen, Obey, & Continue to Listen!

Genesis 22:2-14; 1 Kings 17:1-9; 2 Kings 3:11-27; 1 Corinthians 13:9-12; Isaiah 55:8-11 (WEB)

Genesis 22:2-14

² He said, "Now take your son, your only son, Isaac, whom you love, and go into the land of Moriah. Offer him there as a burnt offering on one of the mountains which I will tell you of."

³ Abraham rose early in the morning, and saddled his donkey; and took two of his young men with him, and Isaac his son. He split the wood for the burnt offering, and rose up, and went to the place of which God had told him. ⁴ On the third day Abraham lifted up his eyes, and saw the place far off. ⁵ Abraham said to his young men, "Stay here with the donkey. The boy and I will go over there. We will worship, and come back to you." ⁶ Abraham took the wood of the burnt offering and laid it on Isaac his son. He took in his hand the fire and the knife. They both went together. ⁷ Isaac spoke to Abraham his father, and said, "My father?"

He said, "Here I am, my son."

He said, "Here is the fire and the wood, but where is the lamb for a burnt offering?"

⁸ Abraham said, "God will provide himself the lamb for a burnt offering, my son." So they both went together. ⁹ They came to the place which God had told him of. Abraham built the altar there, and laid the wood in order, bound Isaac his son, and laid him on the altar, on the wood. ¹⁰ Abraham stretched out his hand, and took the knife to kill his son.

¹¹ Yahweh's angel called to him out of the sky, and said, "Abraham, Abraham!"

He said, "Here I am."

¹²He said, "Don't lay your hand on the boy or do anything to him. For now I know that you fear God, since you have not withheld your son, your only son, from me."

¹³ Abraham lifted up his eyes, and looked, and saw that behind him was a ram caught in the thicket by his horns. Abraham went and took the ram, and offered him up for a burnt offering instead of his son. ¹⁴ Abraham called the name of that place "Yahweh Will Provide". As it is said to this day, "On Yahweh's mountain, it will be provided."

1 Kings 17:1-9

¹ Elijah the Tishbite, who was one of the settlers of Gilead, said to Ahab, "As Yahweh, the God of Israel, lives, before whom I stand, there shall not be dew nor rain these years, but according to my word."

²Then Yahweh's word came to him, saying, ³ "Go away from here, turn eastward, and hide yourself by the brook Cherith, that is before the Jordan. ⁴ You shall drink from the brook. I have commanded the ravens to feed you there." ⁵ So he went and did according to Yahweh's word; for he went and lived by the brook Cherith that is before the Jordan. ⁶ The ravens brought him bread and meat in the morning, and bread and meat in the evening; and he drank from the brook. ⁷ After a while, the brook dried up, because there was no rain in the land.

⁸ Yahweh's word came to him, saying, ⁹ "Arise, go to Zarephath, which belongs to Sidon, and stay there. Behold, I have commanded a widow there to sustain you."

2 Kings 3:11-27

¹¹But Jehoshaphat said, "Isn't there a prophet of Yahweh here, that we may inquire of Yahweh by him?"

One of the king of Israel's servants answered, "Elisha the son of Shaphat, who poured water on the hands of Elijah, is here."

¹² Jehoshaphat said, "Yahweh's word is with him." So the king of Israel and Jehoshaphat and the king of Edom went down to him.

¹³ Elisha said to the king of Israel, "What have I to do with you? Go to the prophets of your father, and to the prophets of your mother."

The king of Israel said to him, "No, for Yahweh has called these three kings together to deliver them into the hand of Moab." ¹⁴ Elisha said, "As Yahweh of Armies lives, before whom I stand, surely, were it not that I respect the presence of Jehoshaphat the king of Judah, I would not look toward you, nor see you. ¹⁵ But now bring me a musician." When the musician played, Yahweh's hand came on him. ¹⁶ He said, "Yahweh says, 'Make this valley full of trenches.' ¹⁷ For Yahweh says, 'You will not see wind, neither will you see rain, yet that valley will be filled with water, and you will drink, both you and your livestock and your other animals. ¹⁸ This is an easy thing in Yahweh's sight. He will also deliver the Moabites into your hand. ¹⁹ You shall strike every fortified city, and every choice city, and shall fell every good tree, and stop all springs of water, and mar every good piece of land with stones.'"

²⁰ In the morning, about the time of offering the sacrifice, behold, water came by the way of Edom, and the country was filled with water.

²¹ Now when all the Moabites heard that the kings had come up to fight against them, they gathered themselves together, all who were able to put on armor, young and old, and stood on the border. ²² They rose up early in the morning, and the sun shone on the water, and the Moabites saw the water opposite them as red as blood. ²³ They said, "This is blood. The kings are surely destroyed, and they have struck each other. Now therefore, Moab, to the plunder!"

²⁴ When they came to the camp of Israel, the Israelites rose up and struck the Moabites, so that they fled before them; and they went forward into the land attacking the Moabites. ²⁵ They beat down the cities; and on every good piece of land each man cast his stone, and filled it. They also stopped all the springs of water, and cut down all the good trees, until in Kir Hareseth all they left was its stones; however the men armed with slings went around it, and attacked it. ²⁶ When the king of Moab saw that the battle was too severe for him, he took with him seven hundred men who drew a sword, to break through to the king of Edom; but they could not. ²⁷ Then he took his oldest son who would have reigned in his place, and offered him for a burnt offering on the wall. There was great wrath against Israel; and they departed from him, and returned to their own land.

1 Corinthians 13:9-12

⁹ For we know in part and we prophesy in part; ¹⁰ but when that which is complete has come, then that which is partial will be done away with. ¹¹ When I was a child, I spoke as a child, I felt as a child, I thought

as a child. Now that I have become a man, I have put away childish things. ¹² For now we see in a mirror, dimly, but then face to face. Now I know in part, but then I will know fully, even as I was also fully known.

Isaiah 55:8-11

⁸ "For my thoughts are not your thoughts, and your ways are not my ways," says Yahweh. ⁹ "For as the heavens are higher than the earth, so are my ways higher than your ways, and my thoughts than your thoughts. ¹⁰ For as the rain comes down and the snow from the sky, and doesn't return there, but waters the earth, and makes it grow and bud, and gives seed to the sower and bread to the eater; ¹¹ so is my word that goes out of my mouth: it will not return to me void, but it will accomplish that which I please, and it will prosper in the thing I sent it to do.

- ➤ I decree and declare as Abraham continued to LISTEN and OBEY God's Voice, each step of the way, so WE MUST ALSO. We cannot rely on yesterday's word to DIRECT us today. We know God's PROMISES in our Heart, but we don't clearly SEE the steps necessary to reach the GOAL. I will be INTENT in LISTENING for EVERY WORD from the Father's Heart.
- ➤ I decree and declare you will DISCERN those who you need to leave behind. Know that where the Lord/Adonai is leading you, everyone is not CALLED. The PROMISE of God/Elohim is your STRENGTH and your FOCUS!
- ➤ I decree and declare in OBEDIENCE I will do as the Lord/Adonai Directs. I will GO, STEP BY STEP, CONTINUALLY LISTENING TO HIM! REALIZE HOW CLOSELY Abraham was LISTENING: he stopped as the angel of the Lord CALLED OUT TO HIM! The Father KNOWS your heart, He is testing that YOU MIGHT KNOW YOUR OWN HEART.
- I decree and declare you will receive BOLDNESS as you step forth and DECLARE the Word of the Lord/Adonai! The Lord/Adonai is making it CLEAR that nothing is taking place without His allowance. When there is famine, or drought, HEAR THE VOICE OF THE LORD! Do as He COMMANDS. CONTINUE TO SEEK HIM. Recognize that in a time of LACK, the LORD/ADONAI WILL PROVIDE!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will ALWAYS HAVE MY EAR TUNED TO THE LORD MY GOD/ADONAI ELOHA!! I will go and do as He DIRECTS; I will POSITION MYSELF FOR HIS PROVISION!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Word of the Lord/Adonai, often, does not make sense to our human understanding. As is the case with Elisha, the Word was to FULFILL THE IMMEDIATE NEED and to CONFUSE the enemy. We cannot REASON OUT the ways of God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare ACCEPTANCE and OBEDIENCE to the Word of God/Elohim is necessary to see the ACCOMPLISHMENT of all He desires to do. There is a COMMITMENT and TRUST required in order for the Lord/Adonai to FULFILL HIS WORD.

- I decree and declare we KNOW IN PART and we PROPHESY IN PART! We see only a GLIMPSE at a time. Continue to SEEK the Lord in ALL YOU DO!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai says: "My thoughts are not your thoughts, nor are your ways My ways. For as the Heavens are higher than Earth, so are My ways higher than your ways, and My thoughts than your thoughts."
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 18, 2019]

I Am Committed to the Lord & His Body!

Philemon 1:4-7; Luke 17:1-4, 11-19, 26-35; Ephesians 4:1-7, 11-16 (WEB)

Philemon 1:4-7

⁴I thank my God always, making mention of you in my prayers, ⁵ hearing of your love and of the faith which you have toward the Lord Jesus, and toward all the saints, ⁶ that the fellowship of your faith may become effective in the knowledge of every good thing which is in us in Christ Jesus. ⁷ For we have much joy and comfort in your love, because the hearts of the saints have been refreshed through you, brother.

Luke 17:1-4, 11-19, 26-35

He said to the disciples, "It is impossible that no occasions of stumbling should come, but woe to him through whom they come! ² It would be better for him if a millstone were hung around his neck, and he were thrown into the sea, rather than that he should cause one of these little ones to stumble. ³ Be careful. If your brother sins against you, rebuke him. If he repents, forgive him. ⁴ If he sins against you seven times in the day, and seven times returns, saying, 'I repent,' you shall forgive him."...

¹¹ As he was on his way to Jerusalem, he was passing along the borders of Samaria and Galilee. ¹² As he entered into a certain village, ten men who were lepers met him, who stood at a distance. ¹³ They lifted up their voices, saying, "Jesus, Master, have mercy on us!"

¹⁴ When he saw them, he said to them, "Go and show yourselves to the priests." As they went, they were cleansed. ¹⁵ One of them, when he saw that he was healed, turned back, glorifying God with a loud voice. ¹⁶ He fell on his face at Jesus' feet, giving him thanks; and he was a Samaritan. ¹⁷ Jesus answered, "Weren't the ten cleansed? But where are the nine? ¹⁸ Were there none found who returned to give glory to God, except this foreigner?" ¹⁹ Then he said to him, "Get up, and go your way. Your faith has healed you."…

²⁶ As it was in the days of Noah, even so it will also be in the days of the Son of Man. ²⁷ They ate, they drank, they married, and they were given in marriage until the day that Noah entered into the ship, and the flood came and destroyed them all. ²⁸ Likewise, even as it was in the days of Lot: they ate, they drank, they bought, they sold, they planted, they built; ²⁹ but in the day that Lot went out from Sodom, it rained fire and sulfur from the sky and destroyed them all. ³⁰ It will be the same way in the day that the Son of Man is revealed. ³¹ In that day, he who will be on the housetop and his goods in the house, let him not go down to take them away. Let him who is in the field likewise not turn back. ³² Remember Lot's wife! ³³ Whoever seeks to save his life loses it, but whoever loses his life preserves it. ³⁴ I tell you, in that night there will be two people in one bed. One will be taken and the other will be left. ³⁵ There will be two grinding grain together. One will be taken and the other will be left."

Ephesians 4:1-7, 11-16

I therefore, the prisoner in the Lord, beg you to walk worthily of the calling with which you were called, ² with all lowliness and humility, with patience, bearing with one another in love, ³ being eager to keep the unity of the Spirit in the bond of peace. ⁴ There is one body and one Spirit, even as you also were called in one hope of your calling, ⁵ one Lord, one faith, one baptism, ⁶ one God and Father of all, who is over all and through all, and in us all. ⁷ But to each one of us, the grace was given according to the measure of the gift of Christ....

¹¹He gave some to be apostles; and some, prophets; and some, evangelists; and some, shepherds^[a] and teachers; ¹² for the perfecting of the saints, to the work of serving, to the building up of the body of Christ, ¹³ until we all attain to the unity of the faith and of the knowledge of the Son of God, to a full grown man, to the measure of the stature of the fullness of Christ, ¹⁴ that we may no longer be children, tossed back and forth and carried about with every wind of doctrine, by the trickery of men, in craftiness, after the wiles of error; ¹⁵ but speaking truth in love, we may grow up in all things into him who is the head, Christ, ¹⁶ from whom all the body, being fitted and knit together through that which every joint supplies, according to the working in measure of each individual part, makes the body increase to the building up of itself in love.

- ➤ I decree and declare I am THANKFUL for your LOVE and COMMITMENT to the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua and to ALL God's people. Fellowship based on your commitment PRODUCES FULL UNDERSTANDING of every good thing that is in UNION with Christ/Messiah.
- ➤ I decree and declare your LOVE is REFRESHING the hearts of God's People and has given us much JOY and ENCOURAGEMENT! Your encouragement to WALK in HUMILITY and to walk in REPENTANCE is a DELIGHT to our Lord/Adonai.
- ➤ I decree and declare INCREASED DISCERNMENT to the Body of Christ/Messiah. Your spiritual senses are expanding and you will DETECT the SNARES set by the enemy, whether inside or outside of your church/synagogue or fellowship group. The Lord speaks, "WOE to the person who sets these snares!"
- ➤ I decree and declare the MANIPULATION of witchcraft and the spirits of Jezebel are RECOGNIZED: you have been working in our nations and in our congregations. You are loosed from the Body and from our governments, and bound and cast into the sea! In the Name and Power of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah! No weapon or intrigue of the enemy will prosper against the FAITHFUL of the Lord.
- ➤ I decree and declare Holy Spirit DWELLS in you and LEADS you to those who NEED HIS TOUCH. As they go on their way, they will be CLEANSED. Multitudes will give TESTIMONY and GLORY to God for the works He has done! Their TRUST will SAVE them!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are FILLED with the BOLDNESS of the Lord. You are sharing His GOOD NEWS in the market place and on the byways. Do not loose heart because of those who do not turn from their ways, but REJOICE for the ones who FIND THE NARROW WAY.
- ➤ I decree and declare the one who tries to preserve his own life will lose it, but WHOEVER LOSES HIS LIFE will stay ALIVE! You who TRUST the Lord with your lives are BLESSED and will be STRENGTHENED until the end.

- ➤ I decree and declare you are LEADING a LIFE WORTHY of the CALLING to which you have been called. You are always HUMBLE, GENTLE and PATIENT, bearing with one another in LOVE, and making EVERY EFFORT to PRESERVE the UNITY the Spirit gives through the BINDING POWER of PEACE/SHALOM!
- ➤ I decree and declare there is ONE BODY and ONE SPIRIT, and you are called to ONE HOPE. There is ONE LORD, ONE TRUST, ONE IMMERSION, and ONE GOD, the Father of all, WHO RULES OVER ALL, WORKS THROUGH ALL and is IN ALL! You have each been given GRACE to be measured by Christ's/Messiah's BOUNTY.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord has given some people as Apostles, some as Prophets, some as Proclaimers of the Good News, and some as Shepherds and Teachers. Their task is to EQUIP GOD'S people for the Work of service that BUILDS the BODY of Christ/Messiah, until we all ARRIVE at the UNITY implied by TRUSTING and KNOWING the Son of God!
- ➤ I decree and declare you are NO LONGER TOSSED ABOUT by the waves and blown along by every wind of teaching, at the mercy of people cleaver in devising ways to deceive. Rather, SPEAKING the TRUTH in LOVE, we will in every respect GROW UP INTO HIM WHO IS THE HEAD, Christ/Messiah!
- ➤ I decree and declare UNDER THE CONTROL of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah, the WHOLE BODY is being fitted and HELD TOGETHER by the support of EVERY JOINT, with each part working to FULFILL its FUNCTION, that is how the BODY GROWS and builds itself up in LOVE.
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 22, 2018]

The Body is Strengthened in Fellowship!

Acts 2:41-47; Philemon 1:4-7; 1 Thessalonians 5:11-22; Romans 15:1-6 (WEB)

Acts 2:41-47

⁴¹Then those who gladly received his word were baptized. There were added that day about three thousand souls. ⁴²They continued steadfastly in the apostles' teaching and fellowship, in the breaking of bread, and prayer. ⁴³Fear came on every soul, and many wonders and signs were done through the apostles. ⁴⁴ All who believed were together, and had all things in common. ⁴⁵They sold their possessions and goods, and distributed them to all, according as anyone had need. ⁴⁶ Day by day, continuing steadfastly with one accord in the temple, and breaking bread at home, they took their food with gladness and singleness of heart, ⁴⁷ praising God, and having favor with all the people. The Lord added to the assembly day by day those who were being saved.

Philemon 1:4-7

⁴I thank my God always, making mention of you in my prayers, ⁵ hearing of your love and of the faith which you have toward the Lord Jesus, and toward all the saints, ⁶ that the fellowship of your faith may become effective in the knowledge of every good thing which is in us in Christ Jesus. ⁷ For we have much joy and comfort in your love, because the hearts of the saints have been refreshed through you, brother.

1 Thessalonians 5:11-22

¹¹Therefore exhort one another, and build each other up, even as you also do. ¹² But we beg you, brothers, to know those who labor among you, and are over you in the Lord, and admonish you, ¹³ and to respect and honor them in love for their work's sake.

Be at peace among yourselves. ¹⁴ We exhort you, brothers: Admonish the disorderly; encourage the faint-hearted; support the weak; be patient toward all. ¹⁵ See that no one returns evil for evil to anyone, but always follow after that which is good for one another and for all.

¹⁶ Always rejoice. ¹⁷ Pray without ceasing. ¹⁸ In everything give thanks, for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus toward you. ¹⁹ Don't quench the Spirit. ²⁰ Don't despise prophecies. ²¹ Test all things, and hold firmly that which is good. ²² Abstain from every form of evil.

Romans 15:1-6

Now we who are strong ought to bear the weaknesses of the weak, and not to please ourselves. ² Let each one of us please his neighbor for that which is good, to be building him up. ³ For even Christ didn't please himself. But, as it is written, "The reproaches of those who reproached you fell on me." Psalm 69:9 ⁴ For whatever things were written before were written for our learning, that through perseverance and through encouragement of the Scriptures we might have hope. ⁵ Now the God of perseverance and of encouragement grant you to be of the same mind with one another according to Christ Jesus, ⁶ that with one accord you may with one mouth glorify the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Body of Christ/Messiah is growing; those who accept the Lord are baptized and continuing FAITHFULLY in teaching of the mature Believers, in FELLOWSHIP, in breaking bread and in PRAYER.
- ➤ I decree and declare MIRACLES and SIGNS are taking place among the Servants of the Lord as they continue in Fellowship and instruction. Live your life daily TRUSTING in Jesus/Yeshua, STAYING TOGETHER and sharing in the needs of one another.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Body of the Lord continues FAITHFULLY and with SINGLENESS OF PURPOSE to meet daily, and break bread in their homes, sharing their food in joy and SIMPLICITY OF HEART, praising God and having the RESPECT of all the People. Day after day the LORD ADDS to them those who were being saved.
- ➤ I decree and declare I thank my God every time I pray: thankful for the FAITHFUL and DILIGENT Believers who PURSUE the Lord and His TEACHING. The heart and desire to FOLLOW the Lord is what draws us together in TRUE FELLOWSHIP.
- ➤ I decree and declare your LOVE and COMMITMENT to the Lord Jesus/Yeshua and to all God's People is KNOWN by the Body and, most importantly, the Lord! The Lord is pleased with your devotion and dedication to one another.
- ➤ I decree and declare your COMMITMENT produces full understanding of EVERY GOOD THING that is ours in UNION with Christ/Messiah. Your LOVE gives us much JOY and ENCOURAGEMENT; your walk refreshes the hearts of God's People.
- ➤ I decree and declare CONTINUE ENCOURAGING and BUILDING EACH OTHER UP! Respect those who are working hard among you, those who are GUIDING you in the Lord and CONFRONTING you in order t help you change. Treat them with the HIGHEST REGARD and LOVE because of the work they are doing.
- ➤ I decree and declare you LIVE AT PEACE among yourselves, but I urge you, to confront those who are lazy, your aim being to help them change, to encourage the timid, to assist the weak, and to be PATIENT with Everyone.
- ➤ I decree and declare we who are STRONG have a DUTY to bear the weaknesses of those who are not strong, rather than please ourselves. Each of us should please his neighbor and ACT FOR HIS GOOD, thus building him up.
- ➤ I decree and declare EVERYTHING WRITTEN in the past was written to teach us, so that with the ENCOURAGEMENT of the Scriptures we will PATIENTLY HOLD ON TO OUR HOPE. And God, the SOURCE OF ENCOURAGEMENT and PATIENCE, will give you the same ATTITUDE among yourselves as Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua had, so that WITH ONE ACCORD and with ONE VOICE you may GLORIFY the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah!
- > I declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 19, 2018]

The Harvest & the Laborers are Ready!

Matthew 9:37-38; 13:24-30; John 14:10-21; Malachi 3:16-18; 4:1-2 (WEB)

Matthew 9:37-38

³⁷Then he said to his disciples, "The harvest indeed is plentiful, but the laborers are few. ³⁸Pray therefore that the Lord of the harvest will send out laborers into his harvest."

Matthew 13:24-30

²⁴ He set another parable before them, saying, "The Kingdom of Heaven is like a man who sowed good seed in his field, ²⁵ but while people slept, his enemy came and sowed darnel weeds also among the wheat, and went away. ²⁶ But when the blade sprang up and produced grain, then the darnel weeds appeared also. ²⁷ The servants of the householder came and said to him, 'Sir, didn't you sow good seed in your field? Where did these darnel weeds come from?'

²⁸ "He said to them, 'An enemy has done this.'

"The servants asked him, 'Do you want us to go and gather them up?'

²⁹ "But he said, 'No, lest perhaps while you gather up the darnel weeds, you root up the wheat with them. ³⁰ Let both grow together until the harvest, and in the harvest time I will tell the reapers, "First, gather up the darnel weeds, and bind them in bundles to burn them; but gather the wheat into my barn.""

John 14:10-21

¹⁰ Don't you believe that I am in the Father, and the Father in me? The words that I tell you, I speak not from myself; but the Father who lives in me does his works. ¹¹ Believe me that I am in the Father, and the Father in me; or else believe me for the very works' sake. ¹² Most certainly I tell you, he who believes in me, the works that I do, he will do also; and he will do greater works than these, because I am going to my Father. ¹³ Whatever you will ask in my name, I will do it, that the Father may be glorified in the Son. ¹⁴ If you will ask anything in my name, I will do it. ¹⁵ If you love me, keep my commandments. ¹⁶ I will pray to the Father, and he will give you another Counselor, that he may be with you forever: ¹⁷ the Spirit of truth, whom the world can't receive; for it doesn't see him and doesn't know him. You know him, for he lives with you, and will be in you. ¹⁸ I will not leave you orphans. I will come to you. ¹⁹ Yet a little while, and the world will see me no more; but you will see me. Because I live, you will live also. ²⁰ In that day you will know that I am in my Father, and you in me, and I in you. ²¹ One who has my commandments and keeps them, that person is one who loves me. One who loves me will be loved by my Father, and I will love him, and will reveal myself to him."

Malachi 3:16-18; 4:1-2

¹⁶Then those who feared Yahweh spoke one with another; and Yahweh listened, and heard, and a book of memory was written before him, for those who feared Yahweh, and who honored his name. ¹⁷They shall be mine," says Yahweh of Armies, "my own possession in the day that I make, and I will spare them, as a man spares his own son who serves him. ¹⁸Then you shall return and discern between the righteous and the wicked, between him who serves God and him who doesn't serve him.

¹ "For, behold, the day comes, it burns as a furnace; and all the proud, and all who work wickedness, will be stubble; and the day that comes will burn them up," says Yahweh of Armies, "that it shall leave them neither root nor branch. ² But to you who fear my name shall the sun of righteousness arise with healing in its wings. You will go out, and leap like calves of the stall.

- ➤ I decree and declare the TIME is SHORT; the Lord has said, "The Harvest is now ready and I have been waiting for laborers to gather the harvest in. I now say unto the Church, that I have enough Labor[er]s!"
- ➤ I decree and declare to those who have EARS to hear, DO NOT HESITATE! Run after God with ALL that is within you! Grab onto the hem of His garment and DO NOT LET GO! This is the commitment and FAITH the Lord is looking for; He is withdrawing His Presence from the Lukewarm.
- ➤ I declare through the ages the enemy has sowed weeds among the GOOD SEED of the Kingdom of Heaven. Until THIS TIME the weeds have remained so that the WHEAT would not be uprooted. God has said that the HARVEST will take place SOON, and He told His reapers to REMOVE the WEEDS from the field first. The weeds are being gathered and burned.
- ➤ I decree and declare Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua is UNITED with the Father and does nothing on His own initiative, but it is the Father LIVING in Him Who does His own works, SO as you TRUST in Jesus/Yeshua YOU WILL ALSO DO the works He does!
- ➤ I decree and declare ALL WHO TRUST in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua WILL DO His works; indeed, they will do GREATER ones because He is with the Father! If you ASK for anything in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name HE WILL DO IT, so that the Father is GLORIFIED in the Son!
- ➤ I decree and declare those who LOVE the Lord KEEP HIS COMMANDS! He has given you His Comforting Counselor, the Spirit of Truth to be with you FOREVER! Follow the Lord in obedience and He will give you STRENGTH and GUIDANCE beyond measure.
- ➤ I declare the World cannot receive from God, because it neither SEEKS nor KNOWS Him. You KNOW GOD because His Spirit dwells within you and YOU ARE UNITED WITH HIM! Continue to SEEK the Lord God Almighty and do not become passive, but PUSH IN, PERSEVERE and SERVE God with all that is within you!
- I declare YOUR NAME and your love for the Lord is WRITTEN in His BOOK. The Lord LISTENS and HEARS you who fear Him, and writes His Book! He says, "They are Mine!"
- ➤ I declare the World will SEE the difference between the RIGHTEOUS and the wicked, between the Person who SERVES God and the one who doesn't serve Him. The day is coming, BURNING

LIKE A FURNACE, when all the proud and evildoers will be stubble; the day that is coming will set them ablaze!

> I declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 9, 2018]

God's Call

Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah Our Deliverer!

Exodus 12:5-14; Deuteronomy 16:1-8; 2 Chronicles 35:1-6, 15-19; Luke 22:1-8, 14-27 (WEB)

Exodus 12:5-14

⁵ Your lamb shall be without defect, a male a year old. You shall take it from the sheep or from the goats. ⁶ You shall keep it until the fourteenth day of the same month; and the whole assembly of the congregation of Israel shall kill it at evening. ⁷ They shall take some of the blood, and put it on the two door posts and on the lintel, on the houses in which they shall eat it. ⁸ They shall eat the meat in that night, roasted with fire, with unleavened bread. They shall eat it with bitter herbs. ⁹ Don't eat it raw, nor boiled at all with water, but roasted with fire; with its head, its legs and its inner parts. ¹⁰ You shall let nothing of it remain until the morning; but that which remains of it until the morning you shall burn with fire. ¹¹ This is how you shall eat it: with your belt on your waist, your sandals on your feet, and your staff in your hand; and you shall eat it in haste: it is Yahweh's Passover. ¹² For I will go through the land of Egypt in that night, and will strike all the firstborn in the land of Egypt, both man and animal. I will execute judgments against all the gods of Egypt. I am Yahweh. ¹³ The blood shall be to you for a token on the houses where you are. When I see the blood, I will pass over you, and no plague will be on you to destroy you when I strike the land of Egypt. ¹⁴ This day shall be a memorial for you. You shall keep it as a feast to Yahweh. You shall keep it as a feast throughout your generations by an ordinance forever.

Deuteronomy 16:1-8

Observe the month of Abib, and keep the Passover to Yahweh your God; for in the month of Abib Yahweh your God brought you out of Egypt by night. ² You shall sacrifice the Passover to Yahweh your God, of the flock and the herd, in the place which Yahweh shall choose to cause his name to dwell there. ³ You shall eat no leavened bread with it. You shall eat unleavened bread with it seven days, even the bread of affliction (for you came out of the land of Egypt in haste) that you may remember the day when you came out of the land of Egypt all the days of your life. ⁴ No yeast shall be seen with you in all your borders seven days; neither shall any of the meat, which you sacrifice the first day at evening, remain all night until the morning. ⁵ You may not sacrifice the Passover within any of your gates which Yahweh your God gives you; ⁶ but at the place which Yahweh your God shall choose to cause his name to dwell in, there you shall sacrifice the Passover at evening, at the going down of the sun, at the season that you came out of Egypt. ⁷ You shall roast and eat it in the place which Yahweh your God chooses. In the morning you shall return to your tents. ⁸ Six days you shall eat unleavened bread. On the seventh day shall be a solemn assembly to Yahweh your God. You shall do no work.

2 Chronicles 35:1-6, 15-19

Josiah kept a Passover to Yahweh in Jerusalem. They killed the Passover on the fourteenth day of the first month. ² He set the priests in their offices, and encouraged them in the service of Yahweh's house. ³ He said to the Levites who taught all Israel, who were holy to Yahweh, "Put the holy ark in the house which Solomon the son of David king of Israel built. It will no longer be a burden on your shoulders. Now serve Yahweh your God, and his people Israel. ⁴ Prepare yourselves after your fathers' houses by your divisions, according to the writing of David king of Israel, and according to the writing of Solomon his son. ⁵ Stand in the holy place according to the divisions of the fathers' houses of your brothers the children of the people, and let there be for each a portion of a fathers' house of the Levites. ⁶ Kill the Passover, sanctify yourselves, and prepare for your brothers, to do according to Yahweh's word by Moses."...

¹⁵The singers the sons of Asaph were in their place, according to the commandment of David, Asaph, Heman, and Jeduthun the king's seer; and the gatekeepers were at every gate. They didn't need to depart from their service, because their brothers the Levites prepared for them.

¹⁶So all the service of Yahweh was prepared the same day, to keep the Passover, and to offer burnt offerings on Yahweh's altar, according to the commandment of king Josiah. ¹⁷The children of Israel who were present kept the Passover at that time, and the feast of unleavened bread seven days. ¹⁸There was no Passover like that kept in Israel from the days of Samuel the prophet, nor did any of the kings of Israel keep such a Passover as Josiah kept, with the priests, the Levites, and all Judah and Israel who were present, and the inhabitants of Jerusalem. ¹⁹This Passover was kept in the eighteenth year of the reign of Josiah.

Luke 22:1-8, 14-27

Now the feast of unleavened bread, which is called the Passover, was approaching. ²The chief priests and the scribes sought how they might put him to death, for they feared the people. ³Satan entered into Judas, who was also called Iscariot, who was counted with the twelve. ⁴He went away, and talked with the chief priests and captains about how he might deliver him to them. ⁵They were glad, and agreed to give him money. ⁶He consented, and sought an opportunity to deliver him to them in the absence of the multitude. ⁷The day of unleavened bread came, on which the Passover must be sacrificed. ⁸Jesus sent Peter and John, saying, "Go and prepare the Passover for us, that we may eat."...

⁴When the hour had come, he sat down with the twelve apostles. ¹⁵He said to them, "I have earnestly desired to eat this Passover with you before I suffer, ¹⁶ for I tell you, I will no longer by any means eat of it until it is fulfilled in God's Kingdom." ¹⁷He received a cup, and when he had given thanks, he said, "Take this, and share it among yourselves, ¹⁸ for I tell you, I will not drink at all again from the fruit of the vine, until God's Kingdom comes."

¹⁹ He took bread, and when he had given thanks, he broke, and gave it to them, saying, "This is my body which is given for you. Do this in memory of me." ²⁰ Likewise, he took the cup after supper, saying, "This cup is the new covenant in my blood, which is poured out for you. ²¹ But behold, the hand of him who betrays me is with me on the table. ²² The Son of Man indeed goes, as it has been determined, but woe to that man through whom he is betrayed!"

²³ They began to question among themselves, which of them it was who would do this thing. ²⁴ A dispute also arose among them, which of them was considered to be greatest. ²⁵ He said to them, "The kings of the nations lord it over them, and those who have authority over them are called 'benefactors.' ²⁶ But not so with you. But one who is the greater among you, let him become as the younger, and one who is governing, as one who serves. ²⁷ For who is greater, one who sits at the table, or one who serves? Isn't it he who sits at the table? But I am among you as one who serves.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

➤ I decree and declare Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah is the LAMB WITHOUT BLEMISH; He walked on this Earth but did not sin — He is the Lamb slain from the foundation of the World. I am thankful, God Almighty/El Shaddai, for Your SCRIPTURES and this history — HIS STORY of

- PROTECTION and COVERING of the People of Israel as the Death Plague was passing over the Land of Egypt.
- ➤ I decree and declare as the People of Israel entered their homes after placing the Blood of the Passover Lamb upon the Lintel and Door Posts, so we are to COVER OUR FAMILYAND OUR HOMES with the Blood of the Lamb, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, which HIDES us and REPELS the enemy, all illness and danger.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am WAITING UPON THE LORD/ADONAI; participating in this Passover/Pesach time: dressed, my shoes on my feet, eating in HASTE. IT IS THE LORD'S/ADONAI'S PASSOVER/PESACH. This is the time HE IS PASSING THROUGH THE LAND to EXECUTE JUDGMENT against all the "gods" of the Land. The BLOOD is a sign for the Believers on the houses where we reside; God/Elohim, when He SEES the BLOOD, will PASS OVER us. So THERE WILL BE NO PLAGUE AMONG US to destroy us when He strikes the Land.
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM OBEDIENT to GO and OBSERVE, to GO and DO as He COMMANDS. I will REMEMBER, with the JEWISH PEOPLE, the DAY when they were brought out from the Land of Egypt. They left Egypt in haste and therefore had unleavened bread, it did not have time to rise. GOD IS OUR PROVISION IN ALL THINGS I WILL LOOK TO THE LORD WHO GOES BEFORE US!
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM A TRUE FOLLOWER OF JESUS CHRIST/YESHUA MESSIAH: CONSECRATED and SANCTIFIED IN HIM, to walk in the Ways of God/Elohim and do His SERVICE to the Called-Out Ones in All Nations. I am one of His Priests on the Earth. I will SPEAK of the SAVING GRACE of the Lord/Adonai, for God/Elohim desires that ALL MEN MIGHT BE SAVED, that none would perish.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am a gatekeeper; we are gatekeepers, and we are STANDING STRONG by the power of the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh. Our Brothers and Sisters PREPARE and ENCOURAGE us to KEEP and SEE THE LORD'S PASSOVER, this Year!
- ➤ I decree and declare God's Passover season is a time of REDEMPTION! Evil and deceived individuals, influenced by satan, were determined to destroy Jesus, the Son of God/Yeshua Ben Elohim, yet no one was able to take His LIFE, He gave it to FULFILL the PURPOSE of God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare it is RIGHT, it is a BLESSED TIME, to observe the Passover in REMEMBRANCE of our Lord/Adonai and in REMEMBRANCE of God's/Elohim's hand of DELIVERANCE over the People of Israel from days of old.
- I decree and declare our Father, God Almighty/Abba, El Shaddai gives unending MERCY! Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah was preparing to give His Life. He shared the cups of the Passover/Pesach meal, and the bread: the New Covenant in His Blood, which was poured out for us, and His Body given for each of us. He knew who would betray Him, and said, "For indeed, the Son of Man is going as has been PREDETERMINED, but WOE to that man by whom He is betrayed.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will stand strong in the Lord/Adonai to LEAD and SERVE that all Humankind might come to the SAVING KNOWLEDGE OF CHRIST JESUS/MESSIAH YESHUA!
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, April 9, 2020]

God's Suddenlies Come that We Might Know Him More!

Luke 9:28-44; 24:1-7, 25-31; Acts 2:1-4; 8:36-40; 16:25-40 (WEB)

Luke 9:28-44

²⁸ About eight days after these sayings, he took with him Peter, John, and James, and went up onto the mountain to pray. ²⁹ As he was praying, the appearance of his face was altered, and his clothing became white and dazzling. ³⁰ Behold, two men were talking with him, who were Moses and Elijah, ³¹ who appeared in glory, and spoke of his departure, which he was about to accomplish at Jerusalem.

³² Now Peter and those who were with him were heavy with sleep, but when they were fully awake, they saw his glory, and the two men who stood with him. ³³ As they were parting from him, Peter said to Jesus, "Master, it is good for us to be here. Let's make three tents: one for you, one for Moses, and one for Elijah," not knowing what he said.

³⁴ While he said these things, a cloud came and overshadowed them, and they were afraid as they entered into the cloud. ³⁵ A voice came out of the cloud, saying, "This is my beloved Son. Listen to him!" ³⁶ When the voice came, Jesus was found alone. They were silent, and told no one in those days any of the things which they had seen.

³⁷ On the next day, when they had come down from the mountain, a great multitude met him. ³⁸ Behold, a man from the crowd called out, saying, "Teacher, I beg you to look at my son, for he is my only child. ³⁹ Behold, a spirit takes him, he suddenly cries out, and it convulses him so that he foams, and it hardly departs from him, bruising him severely. ⁴⁰ I begged your disciples to cast it out, and they couldn't."

⁴¹ Jesus answered, "Faithless and perverse generation, how long shall I be with you and bear with you? Bring your son here."

⁴² While he was still coming, the demon threw him down and convulsed him violently. But Jesus rebuked the unclean spirit, healed the boy, and gave him back to his father. ⁴³ They were all astonished at the majesty of God.

But while all were marveling at all the things which Jesus did, he said to his disciples, ⁴⁴ "Let these words sink into your ears, for the Son of Man will be delivered up into the hands of men."

Luke 24:1-7, 25-31

¹ But on the first day of the week, at early dawn, they and some others came to the tomb, bringing the spices which they had prepared. ²They found the stone rolled away from the tomb. ³They entered in, and didn't find the Lord Jesus' body. ⁴While they were greatly perplexed about this, behold, two men stood by them in dazzling clothing. ⁵Becoming terrified, they bowed their faces down to the earth.

They said to them, "Why do you seek the living among the dead? ⁶ He isn't here, but is risen. Remember what he told you when he was still in Galilee, ⁷ saying that the Son of Man must be delivered up into the hands of sinful men and be crucified, and the third day rise again?"...

²⁵ He said to them Foolish men, and slow of heart to believe in all that the prophets have spoken! ²⁶ Didn't the Christ have to suffer these things and to enter into his glory?" ²⁷ Beginning from Moses and from all the prophets, he explained to them in all the Scriptures the things concerning himself. ²⁸ They came near to the village where they were going, and he acted like he would go further.

He went in to stay with them. ³⁰ When he had sat down at the table with them, he took the bread and gave thanks. Breaking it, he gave it to them. ³¹ Their eyes were opened and they recognized him, then he vanished out of their sight.

Acts 2:1-4

¹ Now when the day of Pentecost had come, they were all with one accord in one place. ² Suddenly there came from the sky a sound like the rushing of a mighty wind, and it filled all the house where they were sitting. ³ Tongues like fire appeared and were distributed to them, and one sat on each of them. ⁴ They were all filled with the Holy Spirit, and began to speak with other languages, as the Spirit gave them the ability to speak.

Acts 8:36-40

³⁶ As they went on the way, they came to some water, and the eunuch said, "Behold, here is water. What is keeping me from being baptized?"

³⁷ And Philip said, If you believe with all your heart, you may. And he answered and said, I believe that Jesus Christ is the Son of God. ³⁸ He commanded the chariot to stand still, and they both went down into the water, both Philip and the eunuch, and he baptized him.

³⁹ When they came up out of the water, the Spirit of the Lord caught Philip away, and the eunuch didn't see him any more, for he went on his way rejoicing. ⁴⁰ But Philip was found at Azotus. Passing through, he preached the Good News to all the cities, until he came to Caesarea.

Acts 16:25-40

²⁵ But about midnight Paul and Silas were praying and singing hymns to God, and the prisoners were listening to them. ²⁶ Suddenly there was a great earthquake, so that the foundations of the prison were shaken; and immediately all the doors were opened, and everyone's bonds were loosened. ²⁷ The jailer, being roused out of sleep and seeing the prison doors open, drew his sword and was about to kill himself, supposing that the prisoners had escaped. ²⁸ But Paul cried with a loud voice, saying, "Don't harm yourself, for we are all here!"

²⁹ He called for lights, sprang in, fell down trembling before Paul and Silas, ³⁰ brought them out, and said, "Sirs, what must I do to be saved?"

³¹They said, "Believe in the Lord Jesus Christ, and you will be saved, you and your household." ³²They spoke the word of the Lord to him, and to all who were in his house.

³³ He took them the same hour of the night and washed their stripes, and was immediately baptized, he and all his household. ³⁴ He brought them up into his house, and set food before them, and rejoiced greatly, with all his household, having believed in God.

²⁹ They urged him, saying, "Stay with us, for it is almost evening, and the day is almost over."

³⁸ The sergeants reported these words to the magistrates, and they were afraid when they heard that they were Romans, ³⁹ and they came and begged them. When they had brought them out, they asked them to depart from the city. ⁴⁰ They went out of the prison, and entered into Lydia's house. When they had seen the brothers, they encouraged them, then departed.

- ➤ I decree and declare YOU who DWELL in the Lord Jesus Christ's/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah's PRESENCE POSITION yourselves for His SUDDENLIES. While His Disciples were with Him PRAYING, the Appearance of His Face changed, and His clothing FLASHED like white LIGHTENING! And behold, two men were talking with Him, Moses and Elijah!
- ➤ I decree and declare it is in these SUDDENLY moments that God/Elohim will confirm of what we know and tell us of the Future. He will REVEAL to His Servants, His Children, WHAT IS TO COME. We will BEHOLD the GLORY of the Lord/Adonai, as we draw near to Him.
- ➤ I decree and declare we EXPECT SUDDENLY deliverances in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah! The Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is PRESENT to HEAL and DELIVER; the demonic powers may fight, but they must BOW and OBEY in the Name of Jesus/Yeshua!
- I decree and declare as we seek UNDERSTANDING in the Lord, SUDDENLY His Angels will appear; they may appear as men in dazzling clothes. They will speak of what is transpiring and what is to come. They will REMIND you of what He has spoken and what is Written in His Word. TRUST in the Lord/Adonai and KNOW that He will direct your steps.
- I decree and declare you who SEEK the Lord and His TRUTH, READ and STUDY His Word daily. You must know the Word to TRUST it. This will lead you into UNDERSTANDING of what is to come. In the Lord's/Adonai's TIME your eyes (natural and spiritual) will be opened.
- ➤ I decree and declare there will be SUDDENLY SOUNDS coming from Heaven a sound like a might Rushing Wind! The Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh is moving, touching and EMPOWERING His People to TOUCH the World for God/Elohim!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not be surprised if the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh SUDDENLY catches me away, transporting me to another place, as I complete my ministry in one location.

³⁵ But when it was day, the magistrates sent the sergeants, saying, "Let those men go."

³⁶The jailer reported these words to Paul, saying, "The magistrates have sent to let you go; now therefore come out and go in peace."

³⁷ But Paul said to them, "They have beaten us publicly without a trial, men who are Romans, and have cast us into prison! Do they now release us secretly? No, most certainly, but let them come themselves and bring us out!"

God is so good and knows when and where we are needed. The physical barriers and challenges we face are not present in the spirit realm.

- ➤ I decree and declare that in the worst of circumstances, as you pray and sing to God/Elohim, there will be a SUDDENLY APPEARANCE of the POWER of the Spirit/Ruach. He will give you FREEDOM you haven't experienced, and He will provide a way where there seems to be none.
- ➤ I decree and declare the SUDDENLIES of the Lord/Adonai give opportunity for many onlookers and their households to come to the SAVING Knowledge of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah. The GLORY of God/Elohim will be GREAT so as to REACH the government officials in the region; they will never be the same.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, December 14, 2019]

By Faith I Move Forth in God's Call & See His Provision

Philippians 4:14-20; Hebrews 11:6-10; Psalm 84:1-12; Matthew 21:21-22; Ephesians 3:8-21 (WEB)

Philippians 4:14-20

¹⁴ However you did well that you shared in my affliction. ¹⁵ You yourselves also know, you Philippians, that in the beginning of the Good News, when I departed from Macedonia, no assembly shared with me in the matter of giving and receiving but you only. ¹⁶ For even in Thessalonica you sent once and again to my need. ¹⁷ Not that I seek for the gift, but I seek for the fruit that increases to your account. ¹⁸ But I have all things and abound. I am filled, having received from Epaphroditus the things that came from you, a sweet-smelling fragrance, an acceptable and well-pleasing sacrifice to God. ¹⁹ My God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus. ²⁰ Now to our God and Father be the glory forever and ever! Amen.

Hebrews 11:6-10

⁶ Without faith it is impossible to be well pleasing to him, for he who comes to God must believe that he exists, and that he is a rewarder of those who seek him.

⁷ By faith, Noah, being warned about things not yet seen, moved with godly fear, prepared a ship for the saving of his house, through which he condemned the world, and became heir of the righteousness which is according to faith.

⁸ By faith, Abraham, when he was called, obeyed to go out to the place which he was to receive for an inheritance. He went out, not knowing where he went. ⁹ By faith, he lived as an alien in the land of promise, as in a land not his own, dwelling in tents with Isaac and Jacob, the heirs with him of the same promise. ¹⁰ For he looked for the city which has the foundations, whose builder and maker is God.

Psalm 84:1-12

¹How lovely are your dwellings, Yahweh of Armies! ²My soul longs, and even faints for the courts of Yahweh. My heart and my flesh cry out for the living God. ³Yes, the sparrow has found a home, and the swallow a nest for herself, where she may have her young, near your altars, Yahweh of Armies, my King, and my God. ⁴Blessed are those who dwell in your house. They are always praising you. *Selah.* ⁵Blessed are those whose strength is in you, who have set their hearts on a pilgrimage. ⁶Passing through the valley of Weeping, they make it a place of springs. Yes, the autumn rain covers it with blessings. ¹They go from strength to strength. Every one of them appears before God in Zion. ⁸ Yahweh, God of Armies, hear my prayer. Listen, God of Jacob. *Selah.* ⁹ Behold, God our shield, look at the face of your anointed. ¹¹ For a day in your courts is better than a thousand. I would rather be a doorkeeper in the house of my God, than to dwell in the tents of wickedness. ¹¹ For Yahweh God is a sun and a shield. Yahweh will give grace and glory. He withholds no good thing from those who walk blamelessly. ¹² Yahweh of Armies, blessed is the man who trusts in you.

Matthew 21:21-22

²¹ Jesus answered them, "Most certainly I tell you, if you have faith and don't doubt, you will not only do what was done to the fig tree, but even if you told this mountain, 'Be taken up and cast into the sea,' it would be done. ²² All things, whatever you ask in prayer, believing, you will receive."

Ephesians 3:8-21

⁸To me, the very least of all saints, was this grace given, to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ, ⁹ and to make all men see what is the administration of the mystery which for ages has been hidden in God, who created all things through Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ to the intent that now through the assembly the manifold wisdom of God might be made known to the principalities and the powers in the heavenly places, ¹¹ according to the eternal purpose which he accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord. ¹² In him we have boldness and access in confidence through our faith in him. ¹³ Therefore I ask that you may not lose heart at my troubles for you, which are your glory.

¹⁴ For this cause, I bow my knees to the Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁵ from whom every family in heaven and on earth is named, ¹⁶ that he would grant you, according to the riches of his glory, that you may be strengthened with power through his Spirit in the inner person, ¹⁷ that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith, to the end that you, being rooted and grounded in love, ¹⁸ may be strengthened to comprehend with all the saints what is the width and length and height and depth, ¹⁹ and to know Christ's love which surpasses knowledge, that you may be filled with all the fullness of God.

²⁰ Now to him who is able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us, ²¹ to him be the glory in the assembly and in Christ Jesus to all generations forever and ever. Amen.

- ➤ I decree and declare I am HONORED to help those who SHARE the Gospel of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah AROUND THE WORLD! God keeps records of my account: the FRUIT of my giving OVERFLOWS to my CREDIT.
- ➤ I decree and declare those who MINISTER WITHOUT RESTRAINT, SELFLESSLY, have MORE THAN ENOUGH, being AMPLY SUPPLIED, having received from the Lord's STOREHOUSE, the gifts stored up for them; coming also from faithful brethren a FRAGRANT AROMA, an acceptable SACRIFICE, pleasing to God/Elohim!
- ➤ I decree and declare my God/Elohim will FULFILL EVERY NEED OF YOURS according to the RICHES OF HIS GLORY in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua! To our God/Elohim and Father be the GLORY FOREVER and EVER! Amen!
- ➤ I decree and declare I COME TO GOD/ELOHIM with FAITH; I believe He exists and that HE IS A REWARDER OF THOSE WHO SEEK HIM! Our FAITH IS WALKED OUT as we obey the Lord/Adonai in all things that He has COMMANDED us.
- ➤ I decree and declare that by FAITH I walk in OBEDIENCE and become an heir of the RIGHTEOUSNESS that comes by FAITH. As Abraham, I GO WALKING IN FAITH, not knowing where I am going. By FAITH I follow the Lord's leading and receive the FULFILLMENT of His PROMISES.

- ➤ I decree and declare my Soul YEARNS, EVEN FAINTS, for the Courts of the Lord/Adonai. My Heart and my Flesh sing for JOY to the Living God/Elohim. I have no desire to go anywhere You, Lord/Adonai, do not lead me. I DESIRE ONLY TO REMAIN IN YOUR PRESENCE IN YOUR WILL! For a day in Your Courts is better than a thousand anywhere else. I would rather stand at the threshold of the House of my God/Elohim than dwell in the tents of wickedness.
- ➤ I decree and declare You, Lord God/Adonai Elohim, are a Sun and a Shield. You give GRACE and GLORY. NO GOOD THING WILL YOU WITHHOLD FROM THOSE WHO WALK UPRIGHTLY! You, Lord of Hosts/Adonai Tzva'ot, BLESS those who TRUST in YOU!
- ➤ I decree and declare if you have FAITH and do not doubt, not only will YOU DO what was done to the fig tree, but even if you say to this Mountain, "Be taken up and thrown into the sea," it will happen! And WHATEVER YOU ASK IN PRAYER, TRUSTING, YOU SHALL RECEIVE."
- ➤ I decree and declare it is my JOY to proclaim the ENDLESS RICHES of Christ/Messiah and to bring to light the PLAN of the MYSTERY which for ages was hidden in God/Elohim, Who Created all things. The PURPOSE is that through Christ's/Messiah's Community the multifaceted WISDOM of God/Elohim might be made KNOWN to the rulers and authorities in the heavenly places, which is in keeping with the Eternal Purpose that He carried out in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua our Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare in Christ/Messiah I have BOLDNESS and ACCESS with CONFIDENCE THROUGH TRUSTING IN HIM! God/Elohim, my Father, will GRANT ME TO BE STRENGTHENED IN MY INNER BEING WITH POWER THROUGH HIS SPIRIT/RUACH, so that Christ may dwell in my heart through FAITH. I AM ROOTED AND GROUNDED IN LOVE, and have STRENGTH to grasp with all the Believers what is the width and length and height and depth, and to KNOW the LOVE of Christ/Messiah which SURPASSES KNOWLEDGE, so that I may be FILLED UP WITH ALL THE FULLNESS OF GOD/ELOHIM!
- ➤ I decree and declare to HIM WHO IS ABLE to do far BEYOND ALL THAT WE ASK OR IMAGINE, by means of His Power that works in us, to Him be the GLORY in the Community of Believers and in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua throughout all generations FOREVER AND EVER! Amen!
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, September 20, 2019]

In Unity We Will Proclaim the Death & Resurrection of Christ

2 Timothy 4:1-5; 1 Corinthians 1:10-31; 1 Corinthians 3:4-23; Psalm 133:1-3 (WEB)

2 Timothy 4:1-5

I command you therefore before God and the Lord Jesus Christ, who will judge the living and the dead at his appearing and his Kingdom: 2 preach the word; be urgent in season and out of season; reprove, rebuke, and exhort with all patience and teaching. 3 For the time will come when they will not listen to the sound doctrine, but having itching ears, will heap up for themselves teachers after their own lusts, 4 and will turn away their ears from the truth, and turn away to fables. 5 But you be sober in all things, suffer hardship, do the work of an evangelist, and fulfill your ministry.

1 Corinthians 1:10-31

¹⁰ Now I beg you, brothers, through the name of our Lord, Jesus Christ, that you all speak the same thing, and that there be no divisions among you, but that you be perfected together in the same mind and in the same judgment. ¹¹ For it has been reported to me concerning you, my brothers, by those who are from Chloe's household, that there are contentions among you. ¹² Now I mean this, that each one of you says, "I follow Paul," "I follow Apollos," "I follow Cephas," and, "I follow Christ." ¹³ Is Christ divided? Was Paul crucified for you? Or were you baptized into the name of Paul? ¹⁴ I thank God that I baptized none of you, except Crispus and Gaius, ¹⁵ so that no one should say that I had baptized you into my own name. ¹⁶ (I also baptized the household of Stephanas; besides them, I don't know whether I baptized any other.) ¹⁷ For Christ sent me not to baptize, but to preach the Good News—not in wisdom of words, so that the cross of Christ wouldn't be made void. ¹⁸ For the word of the cross is foolishness to those who are dying, but to us who are being saved it is the power of God. ¹⁹ For it is written,

"I will destroy the wisdom of the wise.

I will bring the discernment of the discerning to nothing." Isaiah 29:14

²⁰ Where is the wise? Where is the scribe? Where is the lawyer of this world? Hasn't God made foolish the wisdom of this world? ²¹ For seeing that in the wisdom of God, the world through its wisdom didn't know God, it was God's good pleasure through the foolishness of the preaching to save those who believe. ²² For Jews ask for signs, Greeks seek after wisdom, ²³ but we preach Christ crucified: a stumbling block to Jews, and foolishness to Greeks, ²⁴ but to those who are called, both Jews and Greeks, Christ is the power of God and the wisdom of God; ²⁵ because the foolishness of God is wiser than men, and the weakness of God is stronger than men.

²⁶ For you see your calling, brothers, that not many are wise according to the flesh, not many mighty, and not many noble; ²⁷ but God chose the foolish things of the world that he might put to shame those who are wise. God chose the weak things of the world that he might put to shame the things that are strong. ²⁸ God chose the lowly things of the world, and the things that are despised, and the things that don't exist, that he might bring to nothing the things that exist, ²⁹ that no flesh should boast before God. ³⁰ Because of him, you are in Christ Jesus, who was made to us wisdom from God, and righteousness and sanctification, and redemption: ³¹ that, as it is written, "He who boasts, let him boast in the Lord." Jeremiah 9:24

1 Corinthians 3:4-23

⁴ For when one says, "I follow Paul," and another, "I follow Apollos," aren't you fleshly? ⁵ Who then is

Apollos, and who is Paul, but servants through whom you believed, and each as the Lord gave to him? ⁶I planted. Apollos watered. But God gave the increase. ⁷So then neither he who plants is anything, nor he who waters, but God who gives the increase. ⁸Now he who plants and he who waters are the same, but each will receive his own reward according to his own labor. ⁹For we are God's fellow workers. You are God's farming, God's building.

¹⁰ According to the grace of God which was given to me, as a wise master builder I laid a foundation, and another builds on it. But let each man be careful how he builds on it. ¹¹ For no one can lay any other foundation than that which has been laid, which is Jesus Christ. ¹² But if anyone builds on the foundation with gold, silver, costly stones, wood, hay, or stubble, ¹³ each man's work will be revealed. For the Day will declare it, because it is revealed in fire; and the fire itself will test what sort of work each man's work is. ¹⁴ If any man's work remains which he built on it, he will receive a reward. ¹⁵ If any man's work is burned, he will suffer loss, but he himself will be saved, but as through fire.

¹⁶ Don't you know that you are a temple of God, and that God's Spirit lives in you? ¹⁷ If anyone destroys God's temple, God will destroy him; for God's temple is holy, which you are.

¹⁸Let no one deceive himself. If anyone thinks that he is wise among you in this world, let him become a fool, that he may become wise. ¹⁹ For the wisdom of this world is foolishness with God. For it is written, "He has taken the wise in their craftiness." Job 5:13 ²⁰ And again, "The Lord knows the reasoning of the wise, that it is worthless." Psalm 94:11 ²¹ Therefore let no one boast in men. For all things are yours, ²² whether Paul, or Apollos, or Cephas, or the world, or life, or death, or things present, or things to come. All are yours, ²³ and you are Christ's, and Christ is God's.

Psalm 133:1-3

See how good and how pleasant it is for brothers to live together in unity!

It is like the precious oil on the head, that ran down on the beard, even Aaron's beard, that came down on the edge of his robes,

like the dew of Hermon, that comes down on the hills of Zion; for there Yahweh gives the blessing, even life forever more.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will PROCLAIM the Word! We are each charged in the presence of God/Elohim and Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, Who is about to JUDGE the Living and the Dead at His APPEARING and His KINGDOM PROCLAIM the Word!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will be READY when it is convenient or inconvenient. I will CONFRONT, REBUKE, ENCOURAGE with COMPLETE PATIENCE and INSTRUCTION. For the time will come when the People will not put up with SOUND INSTRUCTION, but they will pile up for

- themselves Teachers in keeping with their own desires, to have their ears tickled. They will turn away from hearing the TRUTH and wander off to myths.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will KEEP A CLEAR MIND in all things, withstand hardship, do the work of PROCLAIMING the Good News, and FULFILL my service to the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Body of Christ/Messiah must function in UNITY speaking the same thing and that there should be NO DIVISIONS among you, but that you are each UNITED in the SAME MIND and SAME PURPOSE! For we are all to FOLLOW Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, our Savior, and not any man.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord has sent me to PROCLAIM the Good News not with cleverness of speech, so that the Cross of Christ/Messiah would not be made of no effect. The message of the Cross is foolishness to those who are perishing, but to us who are being saved it is the POWER of GOD!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Jews ask for Signs and the Greek people seek after Wisdom, but we PROCLAIM CHRIST/ MESSIAH CRUCIFIED a stumbling block to Jewish People and foolishness to Gentile People, but to THOSE WHO ARE CALLED (both Jewish and Greek People), Christ/Messiah, the POWER and the WISDOM OF GOD/ELOHIM.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim CHOSE THE FOOLISH THINGS of the World so He might put to shame the Wise; and God/Elohim CHOSE THE WEAK THINGS of the World so He might put to shame the Strong; and He CHOSE THE LOWLY and DESPISED THINGS of the World, the things that are nothing, so He might bring to nothing the things that are so that no human might boast before God/Elohim! But BECAUSE OF HIM you are in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, Who became to us WISDOM from God/Elohim and RIGHTEOUSNESS and HOLINESS and REDEMPTION so that, those who boast will boast in the Lord/Adonai!
- ➤ I decree and declare each of us are CALLED to share the Gospel of Christ/Messiah: some will lay the foundation, others will build on it. But let each CONSIDER CAREFULLY how he builds on it. For no one can lay any other foundation than what is already laid which is Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah. Each one's work will become clear. For the Day will show it, because it is to be REVEALED by FIRE, and the FIRE itself will TEST EACH ONE'S WORK—what sort it is.
- ➤ I decree and declare you are God's/Elohim's TEMPLE and His Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh DWELLS among you. If anyone destroys God's/Elohim's Temple, God will destroy him; for God/Elohim's Temple is HOLY, and you are that Temple.
- ➤ I decree and declare it is GOOD and PLEASANT for Brothers to DWELL TOGETHER IN UNITY! It is like the PRECIOUS OIL upon the Head, coming down upon the beard Aaron's beard coming down on the collar of his robes. It is like the Dew of Hermon, coming down upon the Mountains of Zion. For there the Lord/Adonai COMMANDED THE BLESSING LIFE FOREVERMORE!

> I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 19, 2019]

God is Calling You Higher!

Exodus 24:1-3, 9-18; Isaiah 35:8-10; Psalms 43:2-5; 133:1-3; Ezekiel 1:24-2:6 (WEB)

Exodus 24:1-3, 9-18

He said to Moses, "Come up to Yahweh, you, and Aaron, Nadab, and Abihu, and seventy of the elders of Israel; and worship from a distance. ² Moses alone shall come near to Yahweh, but they shall not come near. The people shall not go up with him."

³ Moses came and told the people all Yahweh's words, and all the ordinances; and all the people answered with one voice, and said, "All the words which Yahweh has spoken will we do."...

⁹Then Moses, Aaron, Nadab, Abihu, and seventy of the elders of Israel went up. ¹⁰They saw the God of Israel. Under his feet was like a paved work of sapphire^[a] stone, like the skies for clearness. ¹¹He didn't lay his hand on the nobles of the children of Israel. They saw God, and ate and drank.

¹² Yahweh said to Moses, "Come up to me on the mountain, and stay here, and I will give you the stone tablets with the law and the commands that I have written, that you may teach them."

¹³ Moses rose up with Joshua, his servant, and Moses went up onto God's Mountain. ¹⁴ He said to the elders, "Wait here for us, until we come again to you. Behold, Aaron and Hur are with you. Whoever is involved in a dispute can go to them."

¹⁵ Moses went up on the mountain, and the cloud covered the mountain. ¹⁶ Yahweh's glory settled on Mount Sinai, and the cloud covered it six days. The seventh day he called to Moses out of the middle of the cloud. ¹⁷ The appearance of Yahweh's glory was like devouring fire on the top of the mountain in the eyes of the children of Israel. ¹⁸ Moses entered into the middle of the cloud, and went up on the mountain; and Moses was on the mountain forty days and forty nights.

Isaiah 35:8-10

8 A highway will be there, a road, and it will be called "The Holy Way".
The unclean shall not pass over it, but it will be for those who walk in the Way. Wicked fools shall not go there.
9 No lion will be there, nor will any ravenous animal go up on it. They will not be found there; but the redeemed will walk there.
10 Then Yahweh's ransomed ones will return, and come with singing to Zion; and everlasting joy will be on their heads.
They will obtain gladness and joy, and sorrow and sighing will flee away."

Psalm 43:2-5

⁸ A highway will be there, a road,

and it will be called "The Holy Way".

The unclean shall not pass over it,
but it will be for those who walk in the Way.
Wicked fools shall not go there.

Pool lion will be there,
nor will any ravenous animal go up on it.
They will not be found there;
but the redeemed will walk there.

Then Yahweh's ransomed ones will return,
and come with singing to Zion;
and everlasting joy will be on their heads.
They will obtain gladness and joy,
and sorrow and sighing will flee away."

Psalm 133:1-3

See how good and how pleasant it is for brothers to live together in unity!

It is like the precious oil on the head, that ran down on the beard, even Aaron's beard, that came down on the edge of his robes,

like the dew of Hermon, that comes down on the hills of Zion; for there Yahweh gives the blessing, even life forever more.

Ezekiel 1:24-2:6

²⁴ When they went, I heard the noise of their wings like the noise of great waters, like the voice of the Almighty, a noise of tumult like the noise of an army. When they stood, they let down their wings.

²⁵ There was a voice above the expanse that was over their heads. When they stood, they let down their wings. ²⁶ Above the expanse that was over their heads was the likeness of a throne, as the appearance of a sapphire^[a] stone. On the likeness of the throne was a likeness as the appearance of a man on it above. ²⁷ I saw as it were glowing metal, as the appearance of fire within it all around, from the appearance of his waist and upward; and from the appearance of his waist and downward I saw as it were the appearance of fire, and there was brightness around him. ²⁸ As the appearance of the rainbow that is in the cloud in the day of rain, so was the appearance of the brightness all around.

This was the appearance of the likeness of Yahweh's glory. When I saw it, I fell on my face, and I heard a voice of one that spoke.

¹He said to me, "Son of man, stand on your feet, and I will speak with you." ²The Spirit entered into me when he spoke to me, and set me on my feet; and I heard him who spoke to me.

³ He said to me, "Son of man, I send you to the children of Israel, to a nation of rebels who have rebelled against me. They and their fathers have transgressed against me even to this very day. ⁴ The children are impudent and stiff-hearted. I am sending you to them, and you shall tell them, 'This is what the Lord^[b] Yahweh says.' ⁵ They, whether they will hear, or whether they will refuse, for they are a rebellious

house, yet they will know that there has been a prophet among them. ⁶ You, son of man, don't be afraid of them, neither be afraid of their words, though briers and thorns are with you, and you dwell among scorpions. Don't be afraid of their words, nor be dismayed at their looks, though they are a rebellious house.

- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim is CALLING you to COME UP HIGHER! All who have PURE HEARTS and are washed in the Blood of the Lamb, Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua, have access to the Presence of the Father.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim requires OBEDIENCE from those who desire to DRAW NEAR and GO HIGHER. SUBMIT to God/Elohim in all His Ways and SEEK Him alone. For Moses, Aaron, his sons and the elders SAW the God/Elohim of Israel, and under His feet was something like a pavement of SAPPHIRE, as clear as the very Heavens! So they BEHELD GOD/ELOHIM!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as you DWELL in God's/Elohim's Presence and REMAIN, He will impart SECRETS, His INSTRUCTIONS to you. As a Priest and King, through Christ/Messiah, you have the AUTHORITY to carry God's MESSAGE to the Peoples.
- ➤ I decree and declare in God's/Elohim's Presence the CLOUD will settle. Spending TIME ALONE in His Presence is where God/Elohim CALLS YOU TO RESIDE. The APPEARANCE of the GLORY of the Lord/Adonai is like a CONSUMING FIRE in the sight of His People. As you DWELL in His Presence you CARRY His GLORY into the World.
- ➤ I decree and declare there is a HIGHWAY called the WAY of HOLINESS. The unclean will not travel on it. It is for the one who Walks the WAY. Fools will not go astray. No lion will be there; no ravenous beast will go up on it. They will not be found there, but the REDEEMED WILL WALK THERE!
- ➤ I decree and declare the RANSOMED of the Lord/Adonai will RETURN and COME to Zion/Tziyon with SINGING, with EVERLASTING JOY upon their Heads. They will obtain GLADNESS and JOY, and sorrow and sighing will flee away.
- ➤ I decree and declare Lord/Adonai, You are my God/Elohim, my STRONGHOLD! You send forth Your LIGHT and TRUTH to guide me! They bring me to Your HOLY Mountain and to Your Dwelling Places.
- ➤ I decree and declare I come before the ALTAR of God/Elohim, to the God of my EXCEEDING JOY, and PRAISE You, Lord/Adonai, upon the Harp O God/Elohim, my God! I am not downcast, for I HOPE in GOD/ELOHIM, for I will yet PRAISE Him, the SALVATION of my countenance!

- ➤ I decree and declare it is GOOD and PLEASANT for brothers to dwell together in UNITY! It is like PRECIOUS OIL upon the head, coming down upon the beard Aaron's beard coming down on the collar of his robes. It is like the DEW of Hermon, coming down upon the Mountains of Zion/Tziyon. For there the Lord/Adonai Commanded the BLESSING LIFE FOREVERMORE!
- ➤ I decree and declare the sound of the Living Beings' wings is like the SOUND of RUSHING WATERS, like voice of the Almighty/Shaddai, a noise of tumult like the noise of an Army. The appearance of the Lord/Adonai was as a human; from what appeared as His waist upward was as GLOWING METAL like a FIRE-ENCASED-in a frame. Fire radiated around Him from the waist down. Like the appearance of the RAINBOW in the cloud on a rainy day, so was the Appearance of the RADIANCE.
- ➤ I decree and declare, as God/Elohim DIRECTS, you will carry His Words to His People and the Nations of the World. The Spirit/Ruach will EMPOWER you. Though you will go to Peoples who are rebellious, whether they listen, or whether they will refuse to listen, they will KNOW THAT a PROPHET has been among them. DO NOT BE AFRAID; DO NOT FEAR THEIR WORDS!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, May 11, 2019]

Anointing

Everything You Put Your Hands to is Blessed!

Deuteronomy 28:1-14; Jeremiah 29:11-14; Joshua 1:6-9; 2 Corinthians 9:6-15; Philippians 4:10-20 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 28:1-14

It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to Yahweh your God's voice, to observe to do all his commandments which I command you today, that Yahweh your God will set you high above all the nations of the earth. ² All these blessings will come upon you, and overtake you, if you listen to Yahweh your God's voice. ³ You shall be blessed in the city, and you shall be blessed in the field. ⁴ You shall be blessed in the fruit of your body, the fruit of your ground, the fruit of your animals, the increase of your livestock, and the young of your flock. ⁵ Your basket and your kneading trough shall be blessed. ⁶ You shall be blessed when you come in, and you shall be blessed when you go out. ⁷ Yahweh will cause your enemies who rise up against you to be struck before you. They will come out against you one way, and will flee before you seven ways. ⁸ Yahweh will command the blessing on you in your barns, and in all that you put your hand to. He will bless you in the land which Yahweh your God gives you. ⁹ Yahweh will establish you for a holy people to himself, as he has sworn to you, if you shall keep the commandments of Yahweh your God, and walk in his ways. ¹⁰ All the peoples of the earth shall see that you are called by Yahweh's name, and they will be afraid of you. ¹¹ Yahweh will grant you abundant prosperity in the fruit of your body, in the fruit of your livestock, and in the fruit of your ground, in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give you. 12 Yahweh will open to you his good treasure in the sky, to give the rain of your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand. You will lend to many nations, and you will not borrow. ¹³ Yahweh will make you the head, and not the tail. You will be above only, and you will not be beneath, if you listen to the commandments of Yahweh your God which I command you today, to observe and to do, ¹⁴ and shall not turn away from any of the words which I command you today, to the right hand or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

Jeremiah 29:11-14

¹¹ For I know the thoughts that I think toward you," says Yahweh, "thoughts of peace, and not of evil, to give you hope and a future. ¹² You shall call on me, and you shall go and pray to me, and I will listen to you. ¹³ You shall seek me, and find me, when you search for me with all your heart. ¹⁴ I will be found by you," says Yahweh, "and I will turn again your captivity, and I will gather you from all the nations, and from all the places where I have driven you, says Yahweh. I will bring you again to the place from where I caused you to be carried away captive."

Joshua 1:6-9

⁶ "Be strong and courageous; for you shall cause this people to inherit the land which I swore to their fathers to give them. ⁷ Only be strong and very courageous. Be careful to observe to do according to all the law which Moses my servant commanded you. Don't turn from it to the right hand or to the left, that you may have good success wherever you go. ⁸ This book of the law shall not depart from your mouth, but you shall meditate on it day and night, that you may observe to do according to all that is written in it; for then you shall make your way prosperous, and then you shall have good success. ⁹ Haven't I commanded you? Be strong and courageous. Don't be afraid. Don't be dismayed, for Yahweh your God is with you wherever you go."

2 Corinthians 9:6-15

⁶ Remember this: he who sows sparingly will also reap sparingly. He who sows bountifully will also reap bountifully. ⁷ Let each man give according as he has determined in his heart, not grudgingly or under

compulsion, for God loves a cheerful giver. ⁸ And God is able to make all grace abound to you, that you, always having all sufficiency in everything, may abound to every good work. ⁹ As it is written,

"He has scattered abroad. He has given to the poor.

His righteousness remains forever." Psalm 112:9

¹⁰ Now may he who supplies seed to the sower and bread for food, supply and multiply your seed for sowing, and increase the fruits of your righteousness, ¹¹ you being enriched in everything to all generosity, which produces thanksgiving to God through us. ¹² For this service of giving that you perform not only makes up for lack among the saints, but abounds also through much giving of thanks to God, ¹³ seeing that through the proof given by this service, they glorify God for the obedience of your confession to the Good News of Christ and for the generosity of your contribution to them and to all, ¹⁴ while they themselves also, with supplication on your behalf, yearn for you by reason of the exceeding grace of God in you. ¹⁵ Now thanks be to God for his unspeakable gift!

Philippians 4:10-20

¹⁰ But I rejoice in the Lord greatly, that now at length you have revived your thought for me; in which you did indeed take thought, but you lacked opportunity. ¹¹ Not that I speak because of lack, for I have learned in whatever state I am, to be content in it. ¹² I know how to be humbled, and I also know how to abound. In everything and in all things I have learned the secret both to be filled and to be hungry, both to abound and to be in need. ¹³ I can do all things through Christ, who strengthens me. ¹⁴ However you did well that you shared in my affliction. ¹⁵ You yourselves also know, you Philippians, that in the beginning of the Good News, when I departed from Macedonia, no assembly shared with me in the matter of giving and receiving but you only. ¹⁶ For even in Thessalonica you sent once and again to my need. ¹⁷ Not that I seek for the gift, but I seek for the fruit that increases to your account. ¹⁸ But I have all things and abound. I am filled, having received from Epaphroditus the things that came from you, a sweet-smelling fragrance, an acceptable and well-pleasing sacrifice to God. ¹⁹ My God will supply every need of yours according to his riches in glory in Christ Jesus. ²⁰ Now to our God and Father be the glory forever and ever! Amen.

- ➤ I decree and declare to ALL who take care to LISTEN OBEDIENTLY to the Voice of the Lord, taking care to do all of His Commandments, the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheykha will SET YOU ON HIGH above all Nations of the Earth! Then ALL THESE BLESSINGS will come upon you and OVERTAKE YOU, because you LISTEN TO THE VOICE OF THE LORD YOUR GOD/ADONAI ELOHEYKHA!
- ➤ I decree and declare to the OBEDIENT, the Lord/Adonai COMMANDS THE BLESSING on you in your barns and in EVERY UNDERTAKING OF YOUR HAND, and He will BLESS you in the Land that He gives you.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu is ESTABLISHING US AS A HOLY PEOPLE FOR HIMSELF, as we keep His Commandments of the Lord/Adonai and WALK IN HIS WAYS! By

- this ALL THE PEOPLES OF THE EARTH WILL SEE that we are called by the Name of the Lord/Adonai and they will stand in AWE of us!
- ➤ I decree and declare and PRAISE YOUR NAME, LORD/ADONAI, that YOU will make me OVERFLOW IN PROSPERITY in the place that you have caused me to dwell. You, Lord/Adonai, will open for me Your Good STOREHOUSE the heavens to give rain for my land in its season and to BLESS ALL THE WORK OF MY HAND.
- ➤ I decree and declare, by the Word of the Lord/Adonai, His PLANS FOR ME ARE FOR PEACE/SHALOM and not calamity to give me a FUTURE and HOPE! I CALL ON THE LORD/ADONAI and PRAY to Him, and HE LISTENS TO ME! I SEARCH for God with all my Heart and I FIND HIM because I search for Him with all my Heart!
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM STRONG in the Might and Power of my Lord, Jesus Christ/Adonai, Yeshua the Messiah! I will INSTRUCT and LEAD the People to INHERIT the Land of God's PROMISE! I AM VERY STRONG and resolute to OBSERVE GOD'S/ELOHIM'S WORD; I will not turn from it to the right or the left, but I will remain FOCUSED and DILIGENT to FOLLOW my God/Elohai so that I WILL BE SUCCESSFUL wherever I go.
- ➤ I decree and declare I MEDITATE ON THE HOLY SCRIPTURES DAY AND NIGHT! They do not depart from my mouth, so that I am CAREFUL TO DO EVERYTHING written them. By holding the Scriptures close in this way, I make my ways PROSPEROUS and I am SUCCESSFUL. I am STRONG! I will not be terrified or dismayed, for the Lord my God/Adonai Elohai is with me wherever I go!
- ➤ I decree and declare I am CHEERFUL in giving to others; by doing so, GOD IS ABLE TO MAKE ALL GRACE OVERFLOW TO ME, so that by always having enough of everything, I will OVERFLOW in every good work!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Who SUPPLIES seed to the sower and bread for food, SUPPLIES and MULTIPLIES my seed and INCREASES THE HARVEST of my Righteousness. I am ENRICHED in EVERYTHING for all GENEROSITY, which brings Thanksgiving to God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare I know what it is to live with HUMBLE MEANS and I know what it is to live in PROSPERITY. In any and every circumstance I have learned the SECRET of CONTENTMENT both to be filled and to go hungry, to have abundance and to suffer need. I CAN DO ALL THINGS THROUGH CHRIST/MESSIAH Who strengthens me.
- ➤ I decree and declare YOU who set your hand to give and assist the Ministers and Servants of the Gospel, share in the trouble and REWARD of our efforts. In this way the FRUIT of our efforts OVERFLOWS TO YOUR CREDIT. My God/Elohai will FULFILL EVERY NEED of yours according to the RICHES OF HIS GLORY in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. To our God/Elohainu and Father be the GLORY FOREVER AND EVER! AMEN!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, January 11, 2020]

Boldness to Move Through the Enemy's Camp!

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40; Proverbs 28:1-10; 2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17; 11:10-14, 21-33; 13:1-10 (WEB)

1 Kings 18:20-26, 30-40

²⁰ So Ahab sent to all the children of Israel, and gathered the prophets together to Mount Carmel. ²¹ Elijah came near to all the people, and said, "How long will you waver between the two sides? If Yahweh is God, follow him; but if Baal, then follow him."

The people didn't say a word.

²²Then Elijah said to the people, "I, even I only, am left as a prophet of Yahweh; but Baal's prophets are four hundred fifty men. ²³Let them therefore give us two bulls; and let them choose one bull for themselves, and cut it in pieces, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under; and I will dress the other bull, and lay it on the wood, and put no fire under it. ²⁴You call on the name of your god, and I will call on Yahweh's name. The God who answers by fire, let him be God."

All the people answered, "What you say is good."

²⁵ Elijah said to the prophets of Baal, "Choose one bull for yourselves, and dress it first; for you are many; and call on the name of your god, but put no fire under it."

²⁶They took the bull which was given them, and they dressed it, and called on the name of Baal from morning even until noon, saying, "Baal, hear us!" But there was no voice, and nobody answered. They leaped about the altar which was made.

Proverbs 28:1-10

¹The wicked flee when no one pursues; but the righteous are as bold as a lion. ²In rebellion, a land has many rulers, but order is maintained by a man of understanding and knowledge. ³A needy man who oppresses the poor is like a driving rain which leaves no crops. ⁴Those who forsake the law praise the wicked; but those who keep the law contend with them. ⁵Evil men don't understand justice; but those who seek Yahweh understand it fully. ⁶Better is the poor who walks in his integrity, than he who is perverse in his ways, and he is rich. ⁵Whoever keeps the law is a wise son; but he who is a companion of gluttons shames his father. ⁶He who increases his wealth by excessive interest gathers it for one who has pity on the poor. ⁶He who turns away his ear from hearing the law, even his prayer is an abomination. ¹⁰Whoever causes the upright to go astray in an evil way, he will fall into his own trap; but the blameless will inherit good.

2 Corinthians 10:1-6, 17

¹ Now I Paul, myself, entreat you by the humility and gentleness of Christ, I who in your presence am lowly among you, but being absent am bold toward you. ² Yes, I beg you that I may not, when present, show courage with the confidence with which I intend to be bold against some, who consider us to be walking according to the flesh. ³ For though we walk in the flesh, we don't wage war according to the flesh; ⁴ for the weapons of our warfare are not of the flesh, but mighty before God to the throwing down of strongholds, ⁵ throwing down imaginations and every high thing that is exalted against the knowledge of God and bringing every thought into captivity to the obedience of Christ, ⁶ and being in readiness to avenge all disobedience when your obedience is made full....

¹⁷ But "he who boasts, let him boast in the Lord." [Jeremiah 9:24]

2 Corinthians 11:10-14, 21-33

¹⁰ As the truth of Christ is in me, no one will stop me from this boasting in the regions of Achaia. ¹¹ Why? Because I don't love you? God knows. ¹² But what I do, that I will do, that I may cut off occasion from those who desire an occasion, that in which they boast, they may be found even as we. ¹³ For such men are false apostles, deceitful workers, masquerading as Christ's apostles. ¹⁴ And no wonder, for even Satan masquerades as an angel of light....

²¹ I speak by way of disparagement, as though we had been weak. Yet in whatever way anyone is bold (I speak in foolishness), I am bold also. ²² Are they Hebrews? So am I. Are they Israelites? So am I. Are they the offspring of Abraham? So am I. ²³ Are they servants of Christ? (I speak as one beside himself.) I am more so: in labors more abundantly, in prisons more abundantly, in stripes above measure, and in deaths often. ²⁴ Five times I received forty stripes minus one from the Jews. ²⁵ Three times I was beaten with rods. Once I was stoned. Three times I suffered shipwreck. I have been a night and a day in the deep. ²⁶ I have been in travels often, perils of rivers, perils of robbers, perils from my countrymen, perils from the Gentiles, perils in the city, perils in the wilderness, perils in the sea, perils among false brothers; ²⁷ in labor and travail, in watchings often, in hunger and thirst, in fastings often, and in cold and nakedness.

²⁸ Besides those things that are outside, there is that which presses on me daily: anxiety for all the assemblies. ²⁹ Who is weak, and I am not weak? Who is caused to stumble, and I don't burn with indignation? ³⁰ If I must boast, I will boast of the things that concern my weakness. ³¹ The God and Father of the Lord Jesus Christ, he who is blessed forever more, knows that I don't lie. ³² In Damascus the governor under King Aretas guarded the Damascenes' city, desiring to arrest me. ³³ I was let down in a basket through a window by the wall, and escaped his hands.

2 Corinthians 13:1-10

¹This is the third time I am coming to you. "At the mouth of two or three witnesses shall every word be established." [Deuteronomy 19:15] ²I have said beforehand, and I do say beforehand, as when I was present the second time, so now, being absent, I write to those who have sinned before now, and to all the rest, that, if I come again, I will not spare; ³ seeing that you seek a proof of Christ who speaks in me; who toward you is not weak, but is powerful in you. ⁴ For he was crucified through weakness, yet he lives through the power of God. For we also are weak in him, but we will live with him through the power of God toward you. ⁵ Examine your own selves, whether you are in the faith. Test your own selves. Or don't you know about your own selves, that Jesus Christ is in you?—unless indeed you are disqualified. ⁶ But I hope that you will know that we aren't disqualified.

⁷ Now I pray to God that you do no evil; not that we may appear approved, but that you may do that which is honorable, though we are as reprobate. ⁸ For we can do nothing against the truth, but for the truth. ⁹ For we rejoice when we are weak and you are strong. We also pray for this: your becoming perfect. ¹⁰ For this cause I write these things while absent, that I may not deal sharply when present, according to the authority which the Lord gave me for building up, and not for tearing down.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Ahab; and IN OBEDIENCE Elijah went to Mount Carmel and called the Children of Israel and the Prophets of Baal. As Elijah MOVED in OBEDIENCE he was filled with BOLDNESS to carry out the Lord's/Adonai's Command. As you move in OBEDIENCE, the Lord/Adonai FILLS YOU WITH HIS HOLY BOLDNESS!
- ➤ I decree and declare, as the Lord/Adonai LEADS, YOU WILL CHALLENGE the spirits of darkness working in your midst. Because you have stepped out in FAITH and BOLDNESS, in the places near you, the Lord/Adonai is SENDING YOU TO THE NATIONS, to places many will avoid because of FEAR. But YOU DO NOT FEAR; YOU MOVE FORWARD IN FAITH, as the Lord DIRECTS. You say in your Heart, "Here I am Lord, SEND ME!" (Isaiah 6:8)
- I decree and declare you will WALK in BOLDNESS that the VOICE of God/Elohim will be heard on the Earth and the People will KNOW HE, THE LORD/ADONAI, IS GOD/ELOHIM!
- ➤ I decree and declare the RIGHTEOUS of the Lord/Adonai are as BOLD as a Lion! A Country that has a Man of DISCERNMENT and KNOWLEDGE in leadership MAINTAINS ORDER! We PRAISE You Lord God/Adonai Elohim for leading this Nation.
- ➤ I decree and declare you who KNOW and OBEY the Scriptures STIR UP the wicked in the Land. You do not praise them but bring them to accountability. Evil men do not understand Justice, but those who SEEK the Lord/Adonai UNDERSTAND IT FULLY!
- ➤ I decree and declare BETTER is the Poor who walks in INTEGRITY than the Rich whose ways are crooked. He who KEEPS God's Word is a discerning Child!
- ➤ I decree and declare those who increase their WEALTH by exorbitant interest, GATHERS IT FOR ONE KINDER to the Poor! The Blameless will INHERIT GOOD! We praise the Lord/Adonai and CALL into our accounts the WEALTH of the wicked that it may be used for the Work of the Kingdom as the Lord/Adonai directs.
- ➤ I decree and declare, though we walk in the flesh, WE DO NOT WAGE WAR ACCORDING TO THE FLESH. For the weapons of our warfare are not fleshly but POWERFUL through God/Elohim for the TEARING DOWN OF SPIRITUAL STRONGHOLDS. We are tearing down false arguments and every high-minded thing that exalts itself against the knowledge of God/Elohim. We are taking every thought captive to the OBEDIENCE of Christ/Messiah. It is not the one who commends himself who is approved, but the ONE WHOM THE LORD COMMENDS!
- ➤ I decree and declare to the Servants of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah: YOU WILL NOT KEEP SILENT! You continue to speak forth the TRUTH of God's Word that you may cut off the opportunity from those who want an opportunity to boast in what they call the truth but is a lie. For they are false apostles, deceitful workers masquerading as Christ's/Messiah's apostles. And no wonder, for even satan masquerades as an angel of light. It is no great thing therefore if his servants also masquerade as servants of righteousness. Their end will be according to their deeds.

- ➤ I decree and declare that there will be TRIALS and PERSECUTIONS as you fulfill the CALL of God on your life and for this generation. If you must boast, boast in your weakness and in the STRENGTH of the Lord/Adonai. It is by His LOVE, PEACE and STRENGTH that you continue the race until the end.
- I decree and declare that Christ/Messiah is speaking through me. He is not weak toward you, but POWERFUL among you. For He was crucified in weakness, yet HE LIVES through the POWER of God/Elohim For, we also are weak in Him, yet we shall LIVE with Him by God's/Elohim's POWER toward you! TEST YOURSELVES, to see whether you are in the Faith. EXAMINE YOURSELVES!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, November 16, 2019]

My Life is to Glorify God!

1 Corinthians 10:23-33; Colossians 3:1-17; Psalm 1:1-6 (WEB)

1 Corinthians 10:23-33

²³ "All things are lawful for me," but not all things are profitable. "All things are lawful for me," but not all things build up. ²⁴ Let no one seek his own, but each one his neighbor's good. ²⁵ Whatever is sold in the butcher shop, eat, asking no question for the sake of conscience, ²⁶ for "the earth is the Lord's, and its fullness." Psalm 24:1 ²⁷ But if one of those who don't believe invites you to a meal, and you are inclined to go, eat whatever is set before you, asking no questions for the sake of conscience. ²⁸ But if anyone says to you, "This was offered to idols," don't eat it for the sake of the one who told you, and for the sake of conscience. For "the earth is the Lord's, with all its fullness." ²⁹ Conscience, I say, not your own, but the other's conscience. For why is my liberty judged by another conscience? ³⁰ If I partake with thankfulness, why am I denounced for something I give thanks for? ³¹ Whether therefore you eat, or drink, or whatever you do, do all to the glory of God. ³² Give no occasion for stumbling, whether to Jews, or to Greeks, or to the assembly of God; ³³ even as I also please all men in all things, not seeking my own profit, but the profit of the many, that they may be saved.

Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

⁵ Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. ⁶ For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; ⁸ but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. ⁹ Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, ¹⁰ and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, ¹¹ where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

¹² Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; ¹³ bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

¹⁴ Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. ¹⁵ And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. ¹⁶ Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

¹⁷ Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

Psalm 1:1-6

Blessed is the man who doesn't walk in the counsel of the wicked,

nor stand on the path of sinners,
nor sit in the seat of scoffers;

² but his delight is in Yahweh's^[a] law.
On his law he meditates day and night.

³ He will be like a tree planted by the streams of water,
that produces its fruit in its season,
whose leaf also does not wither.
Whatever he does shall prosper.

⁴ The wicked are not so,
but are like the chaff which the wind drives away.

⁵ Therefore the wicked shall not stand in the judgment,
nor sinners in the congregation of the righteous.

⁶ For Yahweh knows the way of the righteous,

but the way of the wicked shall perish.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will WALK to HELP and BUILD UP for the GOOD of my neighbor. All that I do will be to ALLOW the LOVE of the Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua Messiah to be expressed. Therefore, whether I eat or drink or whatever I do, I do ALL TO THE GLORY OF GOD!
- I decree and declare I try to please Everyone in Everything, not seeking my own benefit but the BENEFIT of MANY, so that they may be SAVED!
- ➤ I decree and declare I have been RAISED UP WITH CHRIST/MESSIAH, so I will CONTINUE TO SEEK THE THINGS ABOVE where Christ/Messiah is, sitting at the Right Hand of God. My MIND IS FOCUSED ON THINGS ABOVE, not on the things of this Earth, for I HAVE DIED, and my LIFE IS HIDDEN WITH CHRIST/MESSIAH in God/Elohim!
- ➤ I decree and declare I am PUTTING TO DEATH what is Earthly within myself evil desires and greed for that is idolatry and is at enmity with God/Elohim. It is because of such things that God's/Elohim's wrath is coming upon the sons of disobedience. I have set them all aside anger, rage, malice, slander, and foul language out of my mouth.
- ➤ I decree and declare I have TAKEN OFF the OLD SELF with its practices and PUT ON the NEW SELF that is being RENEWED IN KNOWLEDGE, according to the IMAGE of the ONE WHO CREATED HIM.
- ➤ I decree and declare, as one of God's CHOSEN PEOPLE, Holy and Dearly Loved, I am CLOTHED IN TENDER COMPASSION, KINDNESS, GENTLENESS, AND PATIENCE bearing with one another and FORGIVING each other, if Anyone has a grievance against another. As the Lord has PARDONED me, so I must PARDON others.

- ➤ I decree and declare, above all these things, I PUT ON LOVE, which is the BOND of PERFECT HARMONY. I let the PEACE/SHALOM of Christ/Messiah RULE IN MY HEART, for to this Peace/Shalom I was surely CALLED in One Body!
- ➤ I decree and declare I am THANKFUL. I will allow the Word of Christ/Messiah to dwell in me richly, as I TEACH and ADMONISH others with all WISDOM in Psalms and Hymns and Spiritual Songs, Singing with GRATITUDE in my Heart to God/Elohim. In ALL I DO, I will do in the Name of the Lord Jesus/Adonai Yeshua, giving THANKS to God the Father/Elohim Abba through Him.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not walk in the advice of the wicked, nor stand in the way of sinners, nor sit in the seat of scoffers. But MY DELIGHT IS IN THE LAW/TORAH OF THE LORD/ADONAI, and on His Law/Torah do I MEDITATE DAY and NIGHT!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will be as a Tree PLANTED over STREAMS of Water, PRODUCING its FRUIT during its Season. Its leaf never droops but in all I do, I SUCCEED! The Lord KNOWS THE WAY OF THE RIGHTEOUS!
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 10, 2019]

In Love & Obedience I Follow the Lord!

John 14:23-31; Acts 5:12-42; Hebrews 3:1-19 (WEB)

John 14:23-31

²³ Jesus answered him, "If a man loves me, he will keep my word. My Father will love him, and we will come to him, and make our home with him. ²⁴ He who doesn't love me doesn't keep my words. The word which you hear isn't mine, but the Father's who sent me. ²⁵ I have said these things to you while still living with you. ²⁶ But the Counselor, the Holy Spirit, whom the Father will send in my name, will teach you all things, and will remind you of all that I said to you. ²⁷ Peace I leave with you. My peace I give to you; not as the world gives, I give to you. Don't let your heart be troubled, neither let it be fearful. ²⁸ You heard how I told you, 'I go away, and I come to you.' If you loved me, you would have rejoiced, because I said 'I am going to my Father;' for the Father is greater than I. ²⁹ Now I have told you before it happens so that when it happens, you may believe. ³⁰ I will no more speak much with you, for the prince of the world comes, and he has nothing in me. ³¹ But that the world may know that I love the Father, and as the Father commanded me, even so I do. Arise, let's go from here.

Acts 5:12-42

¹² By the hands of the apostles many signs and wonders were done among the people. They were all with one accord in Solomon's porch. ¹³ None of the rest dared to join them, however the people honored them. ¹⁴ More believers were added to the Lord, multitudes of both men and women. ¹⁵ They even carried out the sick into the streets, and laid them on cots and mattresses, so that as Peter came by, at the least his shadow might overshadow some of them. ¹⁶ The multitude also came together from the cities around Jerusalem, bringing sick people and those who were tormented by unclean spirits: and they were all healed.

¹⁷ But the high priest rose up, and all those who were with him (which is the sect of the Sadducees), and they were filled with jealousy ¹⁸ and laid hands on the apostles, then put them in public custody. ¹⁹ But an angel of the Lord opened the prison doors by night, and brought them out and said, ²⁰ "Go stand and speak in the temple to the people all the words of this life."

²¹ When they heard this, they entered into the temple about daybreak and taught. But the high priest came, and those who were with him, and called the council together, and all the senate of the children of Israel, and sent to the prison to have them brought. ²² But the officers who came didn't find them in the prison. They returned and reported, ²³ "We found the prison shut and locked, and the guards standing before the doors, but when we opened them, we found no one inside!"

²⁴ Now when the high priest, the captain of the temple, and the chief priests heard these words, they were very perplexed about them and what might become of this. ²⁵ One came and told them, "Behold, the men whom you put in prison are in the temple, standing and teaching the people." ²⁶ Then the captain went with the officers, and brought them without violence, for they were afraid that the people might stone them.

²⁷ When they had brought them, they set them before the council. The high priest questioned them, ²⁸ saying, "Didn't we strictly command you not to teach in this name? Behold, you have filled Jerusalem with your teaching, and intend to bring this man's blood on us."

²⁹ But Peter and the apostles answered, "We must obey God rather than men. ³⁰ The God of our fathers raised up Jesus, whom you killed, hanging him on a tree. ³¹ God exalted him with his right hand to be a Prince and a Savior, to give repentance to Israel, and remission of sins. ³² We are his witnesses of these things; and so also is the Holy Spirit, whom God has given to those who obey him."

³³ But they, when they heard this, were cut to the heart, and were determined to kill them. ³⁴ But one stood up in the council, a Pharisee named Gamaliel, a teacher of the law, honored by all the people, and commanded to put the apostles out for a little while. ³⁵ He said to them, "You men of Israel, be careful concerning these men, what you are about to do. ³⁶ For before these days Theudas rose up, making himself out to be somebody; to whom a number of men, about four hundred, joined themselves. He was slain; and all, as many as obeyed him, were dispersed, and came to nothing. ³⁷ After this man, Judas of Galilee rose up in the days of the enrollment, and drew away some people after him. He also perished, and all, as many as obeyed him, were scattered abroad. ³⁸ Now I tell you, withdraw from these men, and leave them alone. For if this counsel or this work is of men, it will be overthrown. ³⁹ But if it is of God, you will not be able to overthrow it, and you would be found even to be fighting against God!"

⁴⁰They agreed with him. Summoning the apostles, they beat them and commanded them not to speak in the name of Jesus, and let them go. ⁴¹They therefore departed from the presence of the council, rejoicing that they were counted worthy to suffer dishonor for Jesus' name.

⁴² Every day, in the temple and at home, they never stopped teaching and preaching Jesus, the Christ.

Hebrews 3:1-19

¹Therefore, holy brothers, partakers of a heavenly calling, consider the Apostle and High Priest of our confession: Jesus, ² who was faithful to him who appointed him, as also Moses was in all his house. ³ For he has been counted worthy of more glory than Moses, because he who built the house has more honor than the house. ⁴ For every house is built by someone; but he who built all things is God. ⁵ Moses indeed was faithful in all his house as a servant, for a testimony of those things which were afterward to be spoken, ⁶ but Christ is faithful as a Son over his house. We are his house, if we hold fast our confidence and the glorying of our hope firm to the end. ¹ Therefore, even as the Holy Spirit says, "Today if you will hear his voice, ⁶ don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion, in the day of the trial in the wilderness, ⁰ where your fathers tested me and tried me, and saw my deeds for forty years. ¹ Therefore I was displeased with that generation, and said, 'They always err in their heart, but they didn't know my ways.' ¹¹ As I swore in my wrath, 'They will not enter into my rest.'" [Psalm 95:7-11]

¹² Beware, brothers, lest perhaps there might be in any one of you an evil heart of unbelief, in falling away from the living God; ¹³ but exhort one another day by day, so long as it is called "today", lest any one of you be hardened by the deceitfulness of sin. ¹⁴ For we have become partakers of Christ, if we hold the beginning of our confidence firm to the end, ¹⁵ while it is said, "Today if you will hear his voice, don't harden your hearts, as in the rebellion." [Psalm 95:7-8]

¹⁶ For who, when they heard, rebelled? Wasn't it all those who came out of Egypt led by Moses? ¹⁷ With whom was he displeased forty years? Wasn't it with those who sinned, whose bodies fell in the wilderness? ¹⁸ To whom did he swear that they wouldn't enter into his rest, but to those who were disobedient? ¹⁹ We see that they weren't able to enter in because of unbelief.

I write these decrees in the Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua HaMashiach and in His authority and through His power. The Angelic troops stand ready to dispatch these decrees to the heavenly realms

to the rulers, and authorities, and to post in the King's Palace (Revelations 2 and 3, Ephesians 3:10, Esther 8:10, 13).

- ➤ I decree and declare I LOVE JESUS CHRIST/YESHUA THE MESSIAH, therefore I CHOOSE TO KEEP HIS WORD! His Father, God/Elohim, LOVES me and they have COME TO ME and have made their DWELLING with me.
- ➤ I decree and declare the HELPER, the Holy Spirit/Ruach HaKodesh Whom the Father sent in Jesus'/Yeshua's Name, is with me to TEACH me EVERYTHING and REMIND me of EVERYTHING that Jesus/Yeshua said. I AM NOT ALONE. He is with me to COMFORT and GUIDE in all my ways.
- ➤ I decree and declare the PEACE/SHALOM of Christ/Messiah has been given to you; it is not as the World gives or considers peace. KNOW that Jesus/Yeshua is with you ALWAYS. DON'T LET YOUR HEART BE TROUBLED OR AFRAID. REJOICE for Jesus/Yeshua is with the Father. As He walked in complete OBEDIENCE to the Father, in LOVE, so we will WALK IN LOVE and OBEDIENCE to the Father also!
- I decree and declare as I MOVE IN THE HOLY SPIRIT/RUACH HAKODESH Signs and Wonders will happen among the People. I REJOICE for MORE and MORE will TRUST in the Lord/Adonai and be added to His Body. God's PRESENCE, His GLORY within me will TOUCH those in need, both emotionally and in body. Those who are sick or tormented by unclean spirits will be HEALED, in the Name and Anointing of Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not be alarmed when the religious leaders and some people cannot tolerate the TRUTH and things of God that I share. I will not fear if I am bound and imprisoned, for the Lord is with me. He is my STRENGTH and BOLDNESS to WORSHIP and PRAISE His Name in the midst of the trial. This is an opportunity for God to show His Glory!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will send His Angels to protect His People, no matter what the circumstances are. They will GUARD you in all your ways. (Psalm 91:11) Choose to LISTEN and OBEY the Spirit's/Ruach's promptings; your Way will be very fruitful.
- ➤ I decree and declare though you are given strict orders to abstain from teaching in Jesus Christ's/Yeshua the Messiah's Name, you know that your reply must be, "WE MUST OBEY GOD/ELOHIM rather than men! We must preach Christ/Messiah CRUCIFIED and RAISED FROM THE DEAD, to give repentance to Israel and the World, and REMOVAL OF SINS!"
- ➤ I decree and declare I am among the HOLY family of God/Elohim: brothers and sisters, partners in a HEAVENLY CALLING! I take notice of Jesus/Yeshua the Messenger and High Priest/Kohen Gadol I affirm. Christ/Messiah, as Son, is over God's/Elohim's House and we are His House, if we HOLD FIRM to our BOLDNESS and what we are proud to HOPE!
- ➤ I decree and declare HEARTS and EARS will be OPEN TODAY, that the Backsliders and Unbelievers will TURN and HEAR the CALL of the Spirit/Ruach. I speak LIFE and HOPE into their hearts. Those who have waited will WAIT NO MORE; they will not harden their Hearts in

rebellion, but COME to the Father, covered by the Blood of the Lamb. They will be welcomed before the Father as they TRUST in Christ/Messiah.

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 24, 2019]

Our Encouragement Overflows!

Jeremiah 29:10-14; 2 Corinthians 2:3-14; Malachi 3:16-24; Romans 12:1-2, 9-21 (WEB)

Jeremiah 29:10-14

¹⁰ For Yahweh says, "After seventy years are accomplished for Babylon, I will visit you and perform my good word toward you, in causing you to return to this place. ¹¹ For I know the thoughts that I think toward you," says Yahweh, "thoughts of peace, and not of evil, to give you hope and a future. ¹² You shall call on me, and you shall go and pray to me, and I will listen to you. ¹³ You shall seek me, and find me, when you search for me with all your heart. ¹⁴ I will be found by you," says Yahweh, "and I will turn again your captivity, and I will gather you from all the nations, and from all the places where I have driven you, says Yahweh. I will bring you again to the place from where I caused you to be carried away captive."

2 Corinthians 2:3-14

³ And I wrote this very thing to you, so that, when I came, I wouldn't have sorrow from them of whom I ought to rejoice; having confidence in you all, that my joy would be shared by all of you. ⁴ For out of much affliction and anguish of heart I wrote to you with many tears, not that you should be made to grieve, but that you might know the love that I have so abundantly for you. ⁵ But if any has caused sorrow, he has caused sorrow, not to me, but in part (that I not press too heavily) to you all. ⁶ This punishment which was inflicted by the many is sufficient for such a one; ⁷ so that on the contrary you should rather forgive him and comfort him, lest by any means such a one should be swallowed up with his excessive sorrow. ⁸ Therefore I beg you to confirm your love toward him. ⁹ For to this end I also wrote, that I might know the proof of you, whether you are obedient in all things. ¹⁰ Now I also forgive whomever you forgive anything. For if indeed I have forgiven anything, I have forgiven that one for your sakes in the presence of Christ, ¹¹ that no advantage may be gained over us by Satan, for we are not ignorant of his schemes.

¹² Now when I came to Troas for the Good News of Christ, and when a door was opened to me in the Lord, ¹³ I had no relief for my spirit, because I didn't find Titus, my brother, but taking my leave of them, I went out into Macedonia.

¹⁴ Now thanks be to God, who always leads us in triumph in Christ, and reveals through us the sweet aroma of his knowledge in every place.

Malachi 3:16-24

¹⁶Then those who feared Yahweh spoke one with another; and Yahweh listened, and heard, and a book of memory was written before him, for those who feared Yahweh, and who honored his name. ¹⁷They shall be mine," says Yahweh of Armies, "my own possession in the day that I make, and I will spare them, as a man spares his own son who serves him. ¹⁸Then you shall return and discern between the righteous and the wicked, between him who serves God and him who doesn't serve him.

Romans 12:1-2, 9-21

¹Therefore I urge you, brothers, by the mercies of God, to present your bodies a living sacrifice, holy, acceptable to God, which is your spiritual service. ²Don't be conformed to this world, but be transformed by the renewing of your mind, so that you may prove what is the good, well-pleasing, and perfect will of God....

⁹ Let love be without hypocrisy. Abhor that which is evil. Cling to that which is good. ¹⁰ In love of the brothers be tenderly affectionate to one another; in honor preferring one another; ¹¹ not lagging in diligence; fervent in spirit; serving the Lord; ¹² rejoicing in hope; enduring in troubles; continuing steadfastly in prayer; ¹³ contributing to the needs of the saints; given to hospitality. ¹⁴ Bless those who persecute you; bless, and don't curse. ¹⁵ Rejoice with those who rejoice. Weep with those who weep. ¹⁶ Be of the same mind one toward another. Don't set your mind on high things, but associate with the humble. Don't be wise in your own conceits. ¹⁷ Repay no one evil for evil. Respect what is honorable in the sight of all men. ¹⁸ If it is possible, as much as it is up to you, be at peace with all men. ¹⁹ Don't seek revenge yourselves, beloved, but give place to God's wrath. For it is written, "Vengeance belongs to me; I will repay, says the Lord." [Deuteronomy 32:35] ²⁰ Therefore "If your enemy is hungry, feed him. If he is thirsty, give him a drink; for in doing so, you will heap coals of fire on his head." [Proverbs 25:21-22]

- ➤ I decree and declare YOU WILL NOT GROW WEARY! The Lord/Adonai will visit you and FULFILL HIS GOOD WORD TO YOU to bring to the Land of your inheritance, the Land of Promise! For you TRUST in the Word of the Lord/Adonai, that He has PLANS for PEACE/SHALOM and not calamity to give you a FUTURE and HOPE!
- I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai will LISTEN TO YOU when you CALL on Him. When you SEEK Him you will FIND Him, when you SEARCH for Him with all your Heart. The Lord/Adonai will be found by those who SEEK Him; He will return you from exile and GATHER you from all the Nations and from all the places where you have been driven. He will bring you back to the place from which you were removed as you were taken captive into exile.
- I decree and declare I BLESS the God/Elohim and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah, the Father of COMPASSION and God/Elohim of ALL ENCOURAGEMENT! He ENCOURAGES us in every trouble, so that we are able to ENCOURAGE those who are in any trouble, through the very ENCOURAGEMENT with which we ourselves are ENCOURAGED by God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare just as the SUFFERINGS of Christ/Messiah OVERFLOW into us, so also through Christ/Messiah our ENCOURAGEMENT OVERFLOWS. When we are SUFFERING HARDSHIP, it is for your ENCOURAGEMENT and SALVATION. Also, as we are ENCOURAGED, it is for your ENCOURAGEMENT, which produces in you the PATIENT ENDURANCE of the same sufferings that we also suffer.
- ➤ I decree and declare in those times that you do not know how you can continue living, when you sense within yourselves the death sentence KNOW THAT THIS IS SO YOU WILL NOT RELY ON YOURSELVES, BUT GOD/ELOHIM WHO RAISES THE DEAD!

²¹ Don't be overcome by evil, but overcome evil with good.

- ➤ I decree and declare that the PRAYERS offered up for our ministries are HELPING, so that from many People THANKS may be given on our behalf for the GRACIOUS GIFT given us through the HELP OF MANY!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai TAKES NOTICE and HEARS of you as you speak with each other and ESTEEM His Name. It is written in His Scroll of Remembrance! You are the Lord's/Adonai's YOU ARE HIS SPECIAL POSSESSION. You are among those who SERVE God/Elohim YOU ARE RIGHTEOUS!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Day is coming it will burn like a furnace when all the proud and every evildoer will become stubble. The day that is coming will set them ablaze leaving them neither root nor branch. You will TRAMPLE on the wicked, for THEY WILL BE ASHES UNDER THE SOLES OF YOUR FEET in the Day that the Lord of Hosts/Adonai-Tzva'ot is making!
- ➤ I decree and declare, by the MERCIES OF GOD/ELOHIM, I present my body as a LIVING SACRIFICE —HOLY, ACCEPTABLE TO GOD which is my Spiritual Service. I will not be conformed to this World but am TRANSFORMED BY THE RENEWING OF MY MIND, so that I will DISCERN what the Will of God is what is GOOD and ACCEPTABLE and PERFECT!
- ➤ I decree and declare LOVE MUST BE WITHOUT HYPOCRISY detesting what is evil and HOLDING FAST TO THE GOOD! We must be TENDERLY DEVOTED to one another in brotherly love, outdoing one another in giving HONOR. We must continue SERVING the Lord/Adonai, REJOICING IN HOPE, ENDURING in distress, PERSISTING in PRAYER, contributing to the needs of the Saints/Kedoshim, EXTENDING HOSPITALITY.
- ➤ I decree and declare I will BLESS those who persecute me bless and will not curse. I will REJOICE with those who rejoice; WEEP with those who weep. I will live in HARMONY with all; I will not be proud but will associate with the lowly.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, October 18, 2019]

Flourish

I Am Encouraged—I Will Rejoice!

2 Corinthians 1:3-14; 7:1-7, 12-16; 1 Thessalonians 5:8-24; Romans 15:1-6; Ephesians 3:8-21 (WEB)

2 Corinthians 1:3-14

³ Blessed be the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of mercies and God of all comfort; ⁴ who comforts us in all our affliction, that we may be able to comfort those who are in any affliction, through the comfort with which we ourselves are comforted by God. ⁵ For as the sufferings of Christ abound to us, even so our comfort also abounds through Christ. ⁶ But if we are afflicted, it is for your comfort and salvation. If we are comforted, it is for your comfort, which produces in you the patient enduring of the same sufferings which we also suffer. ⁷ Our hope for you is steadfast, knowing that, since you are partakers of the sufferings, so you are also of the comfort. ⁸ For we don't desire to have you uninformed, brothers, ^[a] concerning our affliction which happened to us in Asia, that we were weighed down exceedingly, beyond our power, so much that we despaired even of life. ⁹ Yes, we ourselves have had the sentence of death within ourselves, that we should not trust in ourselves, but in God who raises the dead, ¹⁰ who delivered us out of so great a death, and does deliver; on whom we have set our hope that he will also still deliver us; ¹¹ you also helping together on our behalf by your supplication; that, for the gift given to us by means of many, thanks may be given by many persons on your behalf.

¹² For our boasting is this: the testimony of our conscience, that in holiness and sincerity of God, not in fleshly wisdom but in the grace of God we behaved ourselves in the world, and more abundantly toward you. ¹³ For we write no other things to you than what you read or even acknowledge, and I hope you will acknowledge to the end, ¹⁴ as also you acknowledged us in part, that we are your boasting, even as you also are ours, in the day of our Lord Jesus.

2 Corinthians 7:1-7, 12-16

Having therefore these promises, beloved, let's cleanse ourselves from all defilement of flesh and spirit, perfecting holiness in the fear of God.

²Open your hearts to us. We wronged no one. We corrupted no one. We took advantage of no one. ³I say this not to condemn you, for I have said before that you are in our hearts to die together and live together. ⁴Great is my boldness of speech toward you. Great is my boasting on your behalf. I am filled with comfort. I overflow with joy in all our affliction.

⁵ For even when we had come into Macedonia, our flesh had no relief, but we were afflicted on every side. Fightings were outside. Fear was inside. ⁶ Nevertheless, he who comforts the lowly, God, comforted us by the coming of Titus, ⁷ and not by his coming only, but also by the comfort with which he was comforted in you while he told us of your longing, your mourning, and your zeal for me, so that I rejoiced still more. ...

¹² So although I wrote to you, I wrote not for his cause that did the wrong, nor for his cause that suffered the wrong, but that your earnest care for us might be revealed in you in the sight of God. ¹³ Therefore we have been comforted. In our comfort we rejoiced the more exceedingly for the joy of Titus, because his spirit has been refreshed by you all. ¹⁴ For if in anything I have boasted to him on your behalf, I was not disappointed. But as we spoke all things to you in truth, so our glorying also which I made before Titus was found to be truth. ¹⁵ His affection is more abundantly toward you, while he remembers all of

your obedience, how with fear and trembling you received him. ¹⁶ I rejoice that in everything I am confident concerning you.

1 Thessalonians 5:8-24

⁸ But since we belong to the day, let's be sober, putting on the breastplate of faith and love, and for a helmet, the hope of salvation. ⁹ For God didn't appoint us to wrath, but to the obtaining of salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ who died for us, that, whether we wake or sleep, we should live together with him. ¹¹ Therefore exhort one another, and build each other up, even as you also do. ¹² But we beg you, brothers, to know those who labor among you, and are over you in the Lord, and admonish you, ¹³ and to respect and honor them in love for their work's sake.

Be at peace among yourselves. ¹⁴ We exhort you, brothers: Admonish the disorderly; encourage the faint-hearted; support the weak; be patient toward all. ¹⁵ See that no one returns evil for evil to anyone, but always follow after that which is good for one another and for all.

¹⁶ Always rejoice. ¹⁷ Pray without ceasing. ¹⁸ In everything give thanks, for this is the will of God in Christ Jesus toward you. ¹⁹ Don't quench the Spirit. ²⁰ Don't despise prophecies. ²¹ Test all things, and hold firmly that which is good. ²² Abstain from every form of evil.

²³ May the God of peace himself sanctify you completely. May your whole spirit, soul, and body be preserved blameless at the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ.

Romans 15:1-6

Now we who are strong ought to bear the weaknesses of the weak, and not to please ourselves. ² Let each one of us please his neighbor for that which is good, to be building him up. ³ For even Christ didn't please himself. But, as it is written, "The reproaches of those who reproached you fell on me." Psalm 69:9 ⁴ For whatever things were written before were written for our learning, that through perseverance and through encouragement of the Scriptures we might have hope. ⁵ Now the God of perseverance and of encouragement grant you to be of the same mind with one another according to Christ Jesus, ⁶ that with one accord you may with one mouth glorify the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ.

Ephesians 3:8-21

⁸To me, the very least of all saints, was this grace given, to preach to the Gentiles the unsearchable riches of Christ, ⁹ and to make all men see what is the administration ^[a] of the mystery which for ages has been hidden in God, who created all things through Jesus Christ, ¹⁰ to the intent that now through the assembly the manifold wisdom of God might be made known to the principalities and the powers in the heavenly places, ¹¹ according to the eternal purpose which he accomplished in Christ Jesus our Lord. ¹² In him we have boldness and access in confidence through our faith in him. ¹³ Therefore I ask that you may not lose heart at my troubles for you, which are your glory.

¹⁴ For this cause, I bow my knees to the Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁵ from whom every family in heaven and on earth is named, ¹⁶ that he would grant you, according to the riches of his glory, that you may be strengthened with power through his Spirit in the inner person, ¹⁷ that Christ may dwell in your hearts through faith, to the end that you, being rooted and grounded in love, ¹⁸ may be strengthened to comprehend with all the saints what is the width and length and height and depth, ¹⁹ and to know Christ's love which surpasses knowledge, that you may be filled with all the fullness of God.

²⁴ He who calls you is faithful, who will also do it.

²⁰ Now to him who is able to do exceedingly abundantly above all that we ask or think, according to the power that works in us, ²¹ to him be the glory in the assembly and in Christ Jesus to all generations forever and ever. Amen.

- ➤ I decree and declare BLESSED is the God/Elohim and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah, the Father of COMPASSION and God/Elohim of ALL ENCOURAGEMENT! He ENCOURAGES US IN EVERY TROUBLE, so that we are able to ENCOURAGE those who are in any trouble, through the very encouragement with which we ourselves are encouraged by God/Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare, as the SUFFERINGS of Christ/Messiah overflow into us, so also through Christ/Messiah our ENCOURAGEMENT OVERFLOWS. If we are suffering hardship, it is for your ENCOURAGEMENT and SALVATION. And if we are ENCOURAGED, it is for your encouragement, which produces in you the PATIENT ENDURANCE of the same sufferings that we also suffer.
- ➤ I decree and declare, though we are under great pressure so far beyond our strength that we despair even of living, WE HAVE HOPE. When we have within ourselves the death sentence so that we might not rely on ourselves, WE RELY ON GOD/ELOHIM WHO RAISES THE DEAD. He Who rescues us from the great danger of death will continue to RESCUE us we have set our HOPE on Him that He will RESCUE us again.
- ➤ I decree and declare YOU ARE HELPING BY YOUR PRAYER FOR US, so that from many People thanks may be given on our behalf for the Gracious GIFT given us through the help of many. We behave in the World with simplicity and godly SINCERITY not by Human Wisdom but by the GRACE OF GOD/ELOHIM.
- ➤ I decree and declare, since I have the PROMISES of Christ/Messiah, I CLEANSE myself daily from all defilement of the body and spirit, PERFECTING HOLINESS IN THE FEAR OF GOD/ELOHIM.

 Because of you I am filled with ENCOURAGEMENT and I overflow with JOY in all my troubles.

 Though I find no rest and am hard pressed on every side conflicts outside, fears within; yet GOD/ELOHIM, Who ENCOURAGES the downcast, ENCOURAGES me by His People.
- ➤ I decree and declare by your DILIGENCE I am ENCOURAGED! As you REFRESH others I am ENCOURAGED! My feelings overflow when I remember your OBEDIENCE how you receive His leaders with FEAR and TREMBLING. I REJOICE that in everything I have confidence in you.
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM OF THE DAY sober minded WEARING THE BREASTPLATE OF FAITHFULNESS AND LOVE, AND THE HOPE OF SALVATION AS A HELMET! For God did not destine me for wrath but for obtaining Salvation through our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah! Therefore, I will encourage my Brothers and Sisters and BUILD THEM UP!

- ➤ I decree and declare I will stand STRONG, yet HUMBLE. I will recognize those who work hard among the Believers and my congregation and are over me in the Lord/Adonai. I will ESTEEM them beyond all measure in LOVE because of their work. I will correct the unruly, comfort the fainthearted, help the weak, and be PATIENT with Everyone.
- ➤ I decree and declare I REJOICE ALWAYS, PRAYING CONSTANTLY, and in everything I GIVE THANKS, for this is God's/Elohim's will in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua. I will heed prophetic messages, testing all things, holding fast to what is good, but keeping away from every kind of evil.
- ➤ I decree and declare we who are STRONG bear the weaknesses of the powerless and not just please ourselves. We each please our neighbor for his good, to BUILD HIM UP. The Scriptures were written for our INSTRUCTION, so that through PATIENCE and the ENCOURAGEMENT of the Word we might have HOPE.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim has FAVORED ME, the least of His Saints/Kedoshim, to PROCLAIM to the World the ENDLESS RICHES OF CHRIST/MESSIAH and to bring to LIGHT the plan of the Mystery which for ages was hidden in God/Elohim who created all thing!
- ➤ I decree and declare and BOW MY KNEES BEFORE THE FATHER from Him every Family in Heaven and on Earth receives its name. From His GLORIOUS RICHES He will STRENGTHEN YOU in your inner being with POWER through His Spirit/Ruach, so that Christ/Messiah may dwell in your hearts through FAITH. You are ROOTED AND GROUNDED IN LOVE, so you will have the STRENGTH TO GRASP THE LOVE OF CHRIST/MESSIAH which surpasses knowledge, so you will be filled up with all the fullness of God/Elohim.
- ➤ I REJOICE for our God is ABLE TO DO FAR BEYOND all that we ask or imagine, by means of His POWER that works in us, to Him be the GLORY in the Community of Believers and in Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua throughout all generations FOREVER AND EVER! Amen!
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, February 10, 2020]

By Bearing Much Fruit You Prove to be Christ's Disciples!

John 15:1-17; Galatians 5:13-26; Ephesians 5:1-16; Psalm 15:1-5 (WEB)

John 15:1-17

"I am the true vine, and my Father is the farmer. ² Every branch in me that doesn't bear fruit, he takes away. Every branch that bears fruit, he prunes, that it may bear more fruit. ³ You are already pruned clean because of the word which I have spoken to you. ⁴ Remain in me, and I in you. As the branch can't bear fruit by itself unless it remains in the vine, so neither can you, unless you remain in me. ⁵ I am the vine. You are the branches. He who remains in me and I in him bears much fruit, for apart from me you can do nothing. ⁶ If a man doesn't remain in me, he is thrown out as a branch and is withered; and they gather them, throw them into the fire, and they are burned. ⁷ If you remain in me, and my words remain in you, you will ask whatever you desire, and it will be done for you.

⁸ "In this my Father is glorified, that you bear much fruit; and so you will be my disciples. ⁹ Even as the Father has loved me, I also have loved you. Remain in my love. ¹⁰ If you keep my commandments, you will remain in my love; even as I have kept my Father's commandments, and remain in his love. ¹¹ I have spoken these things to you, that my joy may remain in you, and that your joy may be made full.

¹² "This is my commandment, that you love one another, even as I have loved you. ¹³ Greater love has no one than this, that someone lay down his life for his friends. ¹⁴ You are my friends, if you do whatever I command you. ¹⁵ No longer do I call you servants, for the servant doesn't know what his lord does. But I have called you friends, for everything that I heard from my Father, I have made known to you. ¹⁶ You didn't choose me, but I chose you and appointed you, that you should go and bear fruit, and that your fruit should remain; that whatever you will ask of the Father in my name, he may give it to you.

¹⁷ "I command these things to you, that you may love one another.

Galatians 5:13-26

¹³ For you, brothers, were called for freedom. Only don't use your freedom for gain to the flesh, but through love be servants to one another. ¹⁴ For the whole law is fulfilled in one word, in this: "You shall love your neighbor as yourself." <u>Leviticus 19:18</u> ¹⁵ But if you bite and devour one another, be careful that you don't consume one another.

¹⁶ But I say, walk by the Spirit, and you won't fulfill the lust of the flesh. ¹⁷ For the flesh lusts against the Spirit, and the Spirit against the flesh; and these are contrary to one another, that you may not do the things that you desire. ¹⁸ But if you are led by the Spirit, you are not under the law. ¹⁹ Now the deeds of the flesh are obvious, which are: adultery, sexual immorality, uncleanness, lustfulness, ²⁰ idolatry, sorcery, hatred, strife, jealousies, outbursts of anger, rivalries, divisions, heresies, ²¹ envy, murders, drunkenness, orgies, and things like these; of which I forewarn you, even as I also forewarned you, that those who practice such things will not inherit God's Kingdom.

²² But the fruit of the Spirit is love, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faith, [a] ²³ gentleness, and self-control. Against such things there is no law. ²⁴ Those who belong to Christ have crucified the flesh with its passions and lusts.

²⁵ If we live by the Spirit, let's also walk by the Spirit. ²⁶ Let's not become conceited, provoking one another, and envying one another.

Ephesians 5:1-16

Be therefore imitators of God, as beloved children. ² Walk in love, even as Christ also loved us and gave himself up for us, an offering and a sacrifice to God for a sweet-smelling fragrance.

³ But sexual immorality, and all uncleanness or covetousness, let it not even be mentioned among you, as becomes saints; ⁴ nor filthiness, nor foolish talking, nor jesting, which are not appropriate, but rather giving of thanks.

⁵ Know this for sure, that no sexually immoral person, nor unclean person, nor covetous man, who is an idolater, has any inheritance in the Kingdom of Christ and God.

⁶ Let no one deceive you with empty words. For because of these things, the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ Therefore don't be partakers with them. ⁸ For you were once darkness, but are now light in the Lord. Walk as children of light, ⁹ for the fruit of the Spirit is in all goodness and righteousness and truth, ¹⁰ proving what is well pleasing to the Lord. ¹¹ Have no fellowship with the unfruitful deeds of darkness, but rather even reprove them. ¹² For it is a shame even to speak of the things which are done by them in secret. ¹³ But all things, when they are reproved, are revealed by the light, for everything that reveals is light. ¹⁴ Therefore he says, "Awake, you who sleep, and arise from the dead, and Christ will shine on you."

¹⁵Therefore watch carefully how you walk, not as unwise, but as wise, ¹⁶ redeeming the time, because the days are evil.

Psalm 15:1-5

Yahweh, who shall dwell in your sanctuary?

Who shall live on your holy hill?

² He who walks blamelessly and does what is right, and speaks truth in his heart;

³ he who doesn't slander with his tongue,

nor does evil to his friend,

nor casts slurs against his fellow man;

⁴ in whose eyes a vile man is despised,

but who honors those who fear Yahweh;

he who keeps an oath even when it hurts, and doesn't change;

⁵ he who doesn't lend out his money for usury,

nor take a bribe against the innocent.

He who does these things shall never be shaken.

- ➤ I decree and declare Jesus Christ/Yeshua the Messiah is the TRUE VINE and His Father/Abba is the GARDENER. Every branch in Jesus/Yeshua that does not bear fruit, He takes away, and Every Branch that BEARS FRUIT, He TRIMS so that it may BEAR MORE FRUIT.
- ➤ I decree and declare I AM ALREADY CLEAN because of the Word Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah has spoken to me. I will ABIDE IN HIM, and HE WILL ABIDE IN ME. The branch cannot itself produce fruit, unless it ABIDES ON THE VINE. Likewise, I cannot produce fruit unless I ABIDE IN Christ/Messiah.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Words of Jesus/Yeshua, "If you ABIDE IN ME and MY WORDS ABIDE IN YOU, ask whatever you wish, and IT SHALL BE DONE for you. In this My Father is Glorified that you BEAR MUCH FRUIT and so PROVE TO BE MY DISCIPLES."
- ➤ I decree and declare I ABIDE IN CHRIST'S/MESSIAH'S LOVE! Just as the Father/Abba loved Him, so also, He has loved me. Yes, I ABIDE in His LOVE! I Keep His Commandments, so I will CONTINUE TO ABIDE in His LOVE, just as He KEPT HIS FATHER'S COMMANDMENTS and abided in His LOVE. I am Jesus'/Yeshua's FRIEND because I do what He COMMANDS me. I am His friend because everything He hears from His Father/Abba he MAKES KNOWN to me.
- ➤ I decree and declare I have been CALLED to FREEDOM which provides OPPORTUNITIES to SERVE one another in LOVE. I walk by the Spirit/Ruach, so that I will not carry out the desires of the flesh. As I WALK BY THE SPIRIT/RUACH I will bear the FRUIT OF THE SPIRIT: LOVE, joy, peace, patience, kindness, goodness, faithfulness, gentleness, and self-control—against such things there is no law.
- ➤ I decree and declare I am an Imitator of God, as a dearly loved Child, and WALK IN LOVE, just as Christ/Messiah also loved us and gave Himself up for us as an Offering and Sacrifice to God for a FRAGRANT AROMA. I will not discuss or participate in immorality or impurity or greed. No coarse, obscene or stupid talk will be found on my lips; but rather my heart is full of THANKSGIVING and this is what I speak.
- ➤ I decree and declare in UNION with Christ/Messiah I am LIGHT. I walk as a Child of LIGHT. I will not take part in fruitless deeds of darkness, but rather will EXPOSE them. I PAY CLOSE ATTENTION TO HOW I WALK not as unwise but wise. I make the most of my time because the days are evil.
- ➤ I decree and declare the One who WALKS WITH INTEGRITY, who does what is RIGHT, and SPEAKS TRUTH in his Heart, who does not slander with his tongue, does not wrong his neighbor, and does not disgrace his friend, who despises a vile person in his eyes, but HONORS those who FEAR the Lord/Adonai THIS ONE MAY DWELL IN THE TENT OF THE LORD AND LIVE ON HIS HOLY MOUNTAIN!
- ➤ I decree and declare the One who WALKS in the ways of the Lord in LOVE and HONOR will NEVER BE SHAKEN!
- > I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, August 22, 2019]

God's Rain is Causing His People to Flourish!

Joel 2:21-27; Isaiah 43:18-21; 45:5-8; Colossians 3:1-17 (WEB)

Joel 2:21-27

²¹ Land, don't be afraid.

Be glad and rejoice, for Yahweh has done great things.

²² Don't be afraid, you animals of the field; for the pastures of the wilderness spring up, for the tree bears its fruit.
The fig tree and the vine yield their strength.

²³ "Be glad then, you children of Zion, and rejoice in Yahweh, your God; for he gives you the early rain in just measure, and he causes the rain to come down for you, the early rain and the latter rain, as before.

²⁴The threshing floors will be full of wheat, and the vats will overflow with new wine and oil.

²⁵ I will restore to you the years that the swarming locust has eaten, the great locust, the grasshopper, and the caterpillar, my great army, which I sent among you.

²⁶ You will have plenty to eat, and be satisfied, and will praise the name of Yahweh, your God, who has dealt wondrously with you; and my people will never again be disappointed.

²⁷ You will know that I am among Israel, and that I am Yahweh, your God, and there is no one else; and my people will never again be disappointed.

Isaiah 45:5-8

⁵I am Yahweh, and there is no one else.

Besides me, there is no God.

I will strengthen [a] you,

though you have not known me,

⁶ that they may know from the rising of the sun, and from the west,

that there is no one besides me.

I am Yahweh, and there is no one else.

⁷I form the light

and create darkness.

I make peace

and create calamity.

I am Yahweh,

who does all these things.

 Rain, you heavens, from above, and let the skies pour down righteousness.
 Let the earth open, that it may produce salvation, and let it cause righteousness to spring up with it.
 I, Yahweh, have created it.

Isaiah 43:18-21

- ¹⁸ "Don't remember the former things, and don't consider the things of old.
- ¹⁹ Behold, I will do a new thing.
 It springs out now.
 Don't you know it?
 I will even make a way in the wilderness, and rivers in the desert.
- ²⁰The animals of the field, the jackals and the ostriches, shall honor me, because I give water in the wilderness and rivers in the desert, to give drink to my people, my chosen,
- the people which I formed for myself, that they might declare my praise.

Colossians 3:1-17

If then you were raised together with Christ, seek the things that are above, where Christ is, seated on the right hand of God. ² Set your mind on the things that are above, not on the things that are on the earth. ³ For you died, and your life is hidden with Christ in God. ⁴ When Christ, our life, is revealed, then you will also be revealed with him in glory.

⁵ Put to death therefore your members which are on the earth: sexual immorality, uncleanness, depraved passion, evil desire, and covetousness, which is idolatry. ⁶ For these things' sake the wrath of God comes on the children of disobedience. ⁷ You also once walked in those, when you lived in them; ⁸ but now you also put them all away: anger, wrath, malice, slander, and shameful speaking out of your mouth. ⁹ Don't lie to one another, seeing that you have put off the old man with his doings, ¹⁰ and have put on the new man, who is being renewed in knowledge after the image of his Creator, ¹¹ where there can't be Greek and Jew, circumcision and uncircumcision, barbarian, Scythian, bondservant, or free person; but Christ is all, and in all.

¹² Put on therefore, as God's chosen ones, holy and beloved, a heart of compassion, kindness, lowliness, humility, and perseverance; ¹³ bearing with one another, and forgiving each other, if any man has a complaint against any; even as Christ forgave you, so you also do.

¹⁴ Above all these things, walk in love, which is the bond of perfection. ¹⁵ And let the peace of God rule in your hearts, to which also you were called in one body, and be thankful. ¹⁶ Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly; in all wisdom teaching and admonishing one another with psalms, hymns, and spiritual songs, singing with grace in your heart to the Lord.

¹⁷ Whatever you do, in word or in deed, do all in the name of the Lord Jesus, giving thanks to God the Father, through him.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will not fear but am GLAD! I REJOICE! For the Lord/Adonai had done GREAT THINGS! The animals of the field will not fear for the Desert Pastures have sprouted, for the Tree bears its FRUIT. Fig Tree and Vine YIELD THEIR STRENGTH!
- ➤ I decree and declare we are GLAD and REJOICE in the Lord our God/Adonai Eloheinu, for He gives us the Early RAIN for PROSPERITY! Yes, He brings down RAIN for us, the Early and Latter RAIN!
- ➤ I decree and declare the THRESHING FLOORS will be FULL of Grain and the Vats will OVERFLOW with NEW WINE and FRESH OIL! The Lord/Adonai will RESTORE to you the YEARS that the locust, the swarming locust, the canker worm and the caterpillar have eaten! You will surely EAT and be SATISFIED and PRAISE the Name of the Lord your God/Adonai Elohim.
- ➤ I decree and declare God/Elohim is the Lord/Adonai there is NO OTHER! Besides Him, there is no God. He is our STRENGTH; He strengthens those who do not know Him, so that they may KNOW, from the RISING to the SETTING of the Sun, that there is no one besides the Lord God/Adonai Elohim of Israel!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai says, "I form LIGHT and create darkness. I make PEACE/SHALOM and create calamity. I do all these things."
- ➤ I decree and declare the Heavens RAIN down from above, and the Clouds POUR down JUSTICE. The Earth OPENS UP, and SALVATION SPROUTS, and RIGHTEOUSNESS SPRINGS UP with it. The Lord/Adonai has created it!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not remember the former things, nor consider the things of the past. For the Lord/Adonai is doing a NEW THING! NOW, it is SPRINGING UP can you SEE IT? He will SURELY MAKE A WAY in the Desert, RIVERS in the Wasteland.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is giving WATERS in the Desert, RIVERS in the Wilderness, to give Drink to His Chosen People, the People He formed for Himself, so they might DECLARE His PRAISE!
- ➤ I decree and declare I have been RAISED UP with Christ/Messiah and I continue to SEEK the things above where He is, sitting at the Right Hand of God/Elohim. I FOCUS my mind on the things above and not on the things on the Earth. For I have died and my life is HIDDEN in Christ/Messiah in God/Elohim.
- ➤ I declare I put on LOVE, which is the Bond of PERFECT HARMONY. I will allow Peace/Shalom of Christ/Messiah to rule in my heart to this Peace/Shalom we were surely called in One Body. I AM THANKFUL. The Word of Messiah DWELLS IN US RICHLY: we are teaching and admonishing

one another with all WISDOM in psalms and hymns and spiritual songs, singing with gratitude in our hearts to God/Elohim.

➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, July 16, 2019]

God is Calling You Into Your Future!

Judges 6:11-16, 22-23, 34; Jeremiah 29:11-14; Psalm 23:1-6; Job 8:5-7, 21-22; 1 Timothy 6:11-19 (WEB)

Judges 6:11-16, 22-23, 34

- ¹¹ Yahweh's angel came and sat under the oak which was in Ophrah, that belonged to Joash the Abiezrite. His son Gideon was beating out wheat in the wine press, to hide it from the Midianites. ¹² Yahweh's angel appeared to him, and said to him, "Yahweh is with you, you mighty man of valor!"
- ¹³ Gideon said to him, "Oh, my lord, if Yahweh is with us, why then has all this happened to us? Where are all his wondrous works which our fathers told us of, saying, 'Didn't Yahweh bring us up from Egypt?' But now Yahweh has cast us off, and delivered us into the hand of Midian."
- ¹⁴ Yahweh looked at him, and said, "Go in this your might, and save Israel from the hand of Midian. Haven't I sent you?"
- ¹⁵He said to him, "O Lord, how shall I save Israel? Behold, my family is the poorest in Manasseh, and I am the least in my father's house."
- ¹⁶ Yahweh said to him, "Surely I will be with you, and you shall strike the Midianites as one man."...
- ²² Gideon saw that he was Yahweh's angel; and Gideon said, "Alas, Lord Yahweh! Because I have seen Yahweh's angel face to face!"
- ²³ Yahweh said to him, "Peace be to you! Don't be afraid. You shall not die."...
- ³⁴ But Yahweh's Spirit came on Gideon, and he blew a trumpet; and Abiezer was gathered together to follow him.

Jeremiah 29:11-14

¹¹ For I know the thoughts that I think toward you," says Yahweh, "thoughts of peace, and not of evil, to give you hope and a future. ¹² You shall call on me, and you shall go and pray to me, and I will listen to you. ¹³ You shall seek me, and find me, when you search for me with all your heart. ¹⁴ I will be found by you," says Yahweh, "and I will turn again your captivity, and I will gather you from all the nations, and from all the places where I have driven you, says Yahweh. I will bring you again to the place from where I caused you to be carried away captive."

Psalm 23:1-6

¹Yahweh is my shepherd: I shall lack nothing. ²He makes me lie down in green pastures. He leads me beside still waters. ³He restores my soul. He guides me in the paths of righteousness for his name's sake. ⁴Even though I walk through the valley of the shadow of death, I will fear no evil, for you are with me. Your rod and your staff, they comfort me. ⁵You prepare a table before me in the presence of my enemies. You anoint my head with oil. My cup runs over. ⁶Surely goodness and loving kindness shall follow me all the days of my life, and I will dwell in Yahweh's house forever.

Job 8:5-7, 21-22

⁵ If you want to seek God diligently, make your supplication to the Almighty. ⁶ If you were pure and upright, surely now he would awaken for you, and make the habitation of your righteousness prosperous. ⁷ Though your beginning was small, yet your latter end would greatly increase....

²¹He will still fill your mouth with laughter, your lips with shouting. ²²Those who hate you will be clothed with shame. The tent of the wicked will be no more."

1 Timothy 6:11-19

¹¹ But you, man of God, flee these things, and follow after righteousness, godliness, faith, love, perseverance, and gentleness. ¹² Fight the good fight of faith. Take hold of the eternal life to which you were called, and you confessed the good confession in the sight of many witnesses. ¹³ I command you before God, who gives life to all things, and before Christ Jesus, who before Pontius Pilate testified the good confession, ¹⁴ that you keep the commandment without spot, blameless, until the appearing of our Lord Jesus Christ, ¹⁵ which in its own times he will show, who is the blessed and only Ruler, the King of kings, and Lord of lords. ¹⁶ He alone has immortality, dwelling in unapproachable light, whom no man has seen, nor can see: to whom be honor and eternal power. Amen.

¹⁷ Charge those who are rich in this present world that they not be arrogant, nor have their hope set on the uncertainty of riches, but on the living God, who richly provides us with everything to enjoy; ¹⁸ that they do good, that they be rich in good works, that they be ready to distribute, willing to share; ¹⁹ laying up in store for themselves a good foundation against the time to come, that they may lay hold of eternal life.

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord God/Adonai Elohim KNOWS where you are TODAY, He KNOWS where you will be TOMORROW; for HE HAS PLACED HIS CALL UPON YOUR LIFE! LOOK UP and see yourself as the Father/Abba SEES YOU! You are a MIGHTY WARRIOR with GREAT VALOR!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will not look back on the DAYS GONE BY; but will LOOK TO THE PROMISES OF THE LORD/ADONA!! He has given me a VISION FOR THE FUTURE MIGHTY WORKS will be done by the Hand of God/Elohim upon my Life!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord is SURELY WITH ME! All that He has placed in my Heart; all that is set before my Path, HE WILL ACCOMPLISH; in the Mighty Name of Jesus Christ/Yeshua Messiah!
- ➤ I decree and declare it is the Spirit of the Lord/Ruach Adonai Who CLOTHES ME! It is by His MIGHT that I go forth. No weapon or strategy formed against me will prosper. The Work of the Lord will be accomplished to TAKE THE LAND and WIN THE SOULS for Christ Jesus/Messiah Yeshua!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai knows the PLANS that He has in mind for me; PLANS FOR PEACE/SHALOM and not calamity —PLANS TO GIVE ME A FUTURE and a HOPE! As I CALL on the

Lord/Adonai and PRAY to Him, and HE LISTENS TO ME! I SEEK Him CONTINUALLY and I FIND HIM, because I search for Him with ALL MY HEART!

- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord is my Shepherd/Adonai-Ro-eh, I SHALL NOT WANT. He makes me LIE DOWN in green Pastures; He LEADS ME beside still waters. HE RESTORES MY SOUL! The Lord/Adonai GUIDES ME in Paths of RIGHTEOUSNESS for His Name's sake.
- ➤ I decree and declare though I walk through the Valley of the Shadow of Death, I WILL FEAR NO EVIL, for YOU, Lord/Adonai, are WITH ME! Your Rod and Your Staff COMFORT me. You prepare a Table before me in the presence of my enemies. YOU HAVE ANOINTED MY HEAD WITH OIL, my cup OVERFLOWS.
- ➤ I decree and declare surely GOODNESS and MERCY will follow me ALL THE DAYS OF MY LIFE, and I will DWELL in the House of the Lord/Adonai FOREVER!
- I decree and declare though my beginning was small, my FUTURE WILL FLOURISH! He will fill my mouth with LAUGHTER and my lips with SHOUTS of JOY! Those who hate me will be clothed with shame. The tent of the wicked will be no more!
- ➤ I decree and declare I will PURSUE RIGHTEOUSNESS, GODLINESS, FAITHFULNESS, LOVE, perseverance and gentleness. I will FIGHT the good fight of faith; and TAKE HOLD of the Eternal Life I was CALLED TO. I will keep the Command of the Lord without spot or blame until the appearing of our Lord Jesus Christ/Adonai Yeshua the Messiah.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, September 25, 2019]

The Obedient of the Lord are Being Raised Up!

Deuteronomy 26:16-19; 28:1-14; Psalm 18:46-50; 103:3-18 (WEB)

Deuteronomy 26:16-19

¹⁶ Today Yahweh your God commands you to do these statutes and ordinances. You shall therefore keep and do them with all your heart and with all your soul. ¹⁷ You have declared today that Yahweh is your God, and that you would walk in his ways, keep his statutes, his commandments, and his ordinances, and listen to his voice. ¹⁸ Yahweh has declared today that you are a people for his own possession, as he has promised you, and that you should keep all his commandments. ¹⁹ He will make you high above all nations that he has made, in praise, in name, and in honor; and that you may be a holy people to Yahweh your God, as he has spoken.

Deuteronomy 28:1-14

It shall happen, if you shall listen diligently to Yahweh your God's voice, to observe to do all his commandments which I command you today, that Yahweh your God will set you high above all the nations of the earth. ² All these blessings will come upon you, and overtake you, if you listen to Yahweh your God's voice. ³ You shall be blessed in the city, and you shall be blessed in the field. ⁴ You shall be blessed in the fruit of your body, the fruit of your ground, the fruit of your animals, the increase of your livestock, and the young of your flock. ⁵ Your basket and your kneading trough shall be blessed. ⁶ You shall be blessed when you come in, and you shall be blessed when you go out. ⁷ Yahweh will cause your enemies who rise up against you to be struck before you. They will come out against you one way, and will flee before you seven ways. 8 Yahweh will command the blessing on you in your barns, and in all that you put your hand to. He will bless you in the land which Yahweh your God gives you. ⁹ Yahweh will establish you for a holy people to himself, as he has sworn to you, if you shall keep the commandments of Yahweh your God, and walk in his ways. ¹⁰ All the peoples of the earth shall see that you are called by Yahweh's name, and they will be afraid of you. ¹¹ Yahweh will grant you abundant prosperity in the fruit of your body, in the fruit of your livestock, and in the fruit of your ground, in the land which Yahweh swore to your fathers to give you. ¹² Yahweh will open to you his good treasure in the sky, to give the rain of your land in its season, and to bless all the work of your hand. You will lend to many nations, and you will not borrow. 13 Yahweh will make you the head, and not the tail. You will be above only, and you will not be beneath, if you listen to the commandments of Yahweh your God which I command you today, to observe and to do, ¹⁴ and shall not turn away from any of the words which I command you today, to the right hand or to the left, to go after other gods to serve them.

Psalm 18:46-50

- ⁴⁶ Yahweh lives! Blessed be my rock. Exalted be the God of my salvation,
- ⁴⁷ even the God who executes vengeance for me, and subdues peoples under me.
- ⁴⁸ He rescues me from my enemies.
 - Yes, you lift me up above those who rise up against me.
 - You deliver me from the violent man.
- ⁴⁹Therefore I will give thanks to you, Yahweh, among the nations, and will sing praises to your name.
- ⁵⁰ He gives great deliverance to his king,

and shows loving kindness to his anointed, to David and to his offspring, [a] forever more.

Psalm 103:3-18

- ³ who forgives all your sins, who heals all your diseases,
- ⁴ who redeems your life from destruction, who crowns you with loving kindness and tender mercies,
- 5 who satisfies your desire with good things, so that your youth is renewed like the eagle's.
- ⁶ Yahweh executes righteous acts,
 - and justice for all who are oppressed.
- ⁷He made known his ways to Moses, his deeds to the children of Israel.
- ⁸ Yahweh is merciful and gracious, slow to anger, and abundant in loving kindness.
- ⁹He will not always accuse; neither will he stay angry forever.
- ¹⁰ He has not dealt with us according to our sins, nor repaid us for our iniquities.
- ¹¹ For as the heavens are high above the earth, so great is his loving kindness toward those who fear him.
- ¹² As far as the east is from the west,
 - so far has he removed our transgressions from us.
- ¹³ Like a father has compassion on his children, so Yahweh has compassion on those who fear him.
- ¹⁴ For he knows how we are made.
 - He remembers that we are dust.
- ¹⁵ As for man, his days are like grass.
 - As a flower of the field, so he flourishes.
- ¹⁶ For the wind passes over it, and it is gone.
 - Its place remembers it no more.
- ¹⁷ But Yahweh's loving kindness is from everlasting to everlasting with those who fear him, his righteousness to children's children,
- ¹⁸ to those who keep his covenant,
 - to those who remember to obey his precepts.

- ➤ I decree and declare I will OBEY the Lord my God/Adonai Eloheinu: I will OBEY His Words with ALL MY HEART and ALL MY BEING! The Lord/Adonai is my God/Eloheinu and I will FOLLOW His WAYS, OBSERVE His Laws, Commandments and Rulings to do WHATEVER HE SAYS!
- ➤ I decree and declare to the OBEDIENT: the Lord/Adonai agrees that you are His OWN UNIQUE TREASURE, as He Promised you; that you are to OBSERVE all His Commandments; and that He

will RAISE YOU HIGH above all the Nations and above the surrounding Peoples He has made, in PRAISE, REPUTATION and GLORY; and that, as He said, you will be a HOLY PEOPLE for the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu!

- ➤ I decree and declare you are BLESSED in the City and BLESSED in the Countryside. The BLESSING of the Lord/Adonai is on the fruit of your body, the fruit of your land and the fruit of your livestock. There is a BLESSING on your grain basket and your kneading bowl. You are BLESSED when you GO OUT and when you COME IN!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai causes your enemies attacking you to be DEFEATED before you; they will advance on you one way and FLEE before you seven ways!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai orders a BLESSING to be with you in EVERYTHING you undertake; He is BLESSING you in the Land that He has given you. The Lord/Adonai is ESTABLISHING you as a People SEPARATED OUT for Himself, as He has sworn to you if you will observe the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu and follow His Ways.
- ➤ I decree and declare all Peoples on Earth will SEE that the Lord's/Adonai's Name, His PRESENCE, is with you; so that they will be afraid of you. The Lord/Adonai will open for you His Good TREASURE to bless Everything you undertake. You will lend to many Nations and not borrow; the Lord/Adonai will make you the Head and not the Tail; and you will be only ABOVE; never below if you will LISTEN to, OBSERVE and OBEY the Commandments of the Lord your God/Adonai Eloheinu.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai is ALIVE! Blessed is my Rock! EXALTED is the God/Elohim of my SALVATION, the God/Elohim Who avenges me and SUBDUES Peoples under me. He DELIVERS me from my enemies. He LIFTS ME HIGH above my enemies, He RESCUES ME from violent men!
- ➤ I decree and declare I give THANKS to You, Lord/Adonai, among the Nations; I sing PRAISES to Your Name. Great SALVATION He gives to His Chosen Ones; He displays GRACE to His Anointed, FOREVER!
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai SURROUNDS you with GRACE and COMPASSION, He contents you with Good as long as you live, so that your YOUTH is RENEWED like an Eagle's.
- ➤ I decree and declare the Lord/Adonai brings VINDICATION and JUSTICE to all who are oppressed. He is MERCIFUL and COMPASSIONATE, slow to anger and rich in GRACE. He has not treated us as our sins deserve or paid us back for our offenses, because His MERCY toward those who FEAR Him is as far above Earth as Heaven.
- ➤ I decree and declare the MERCY of the Lord/Adonai on those who FEAR Him is from Eternity Past to Eternity Future, and His RIGHTEOUSNESS extends to His Children's Children, provided they keep His Covenant and REMEMBER to follow His Precepts.
- ➤ I decree and declare a CLEANSING and UNIFYING of the people of this land as these decrees go forth.

In the name of King Jesus Christ/ Malakh Yeshua HaMashiach, empowered and led of the Holy Spirit/ Ruach HaKodesh of God/Elohim, we dispatch the Angelic troops, throughout this land and in the spirit realm, to deliver these decrees to all, both flesh and spirit. The enemy, the principalities and powers, have no authority to act against these decrees of our King, the Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai; their actions will be of no effect to God's/Elohim's chosen ones, but will be turned back on themselves for destruction.

The Lord God Almighty/Adonai El Shaddai, Maker of Heaven and Earth, we praise Your Name for You are True and Faithful and Just to perform it. Amen!

[Published on Synergy of the Ages NW, March 13, 2019]